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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM"”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market desighed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of SK Target Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best
of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.

oo o o

gobooooboooooboboobooboboobooboobooboobboobooboobobooboobo
gbooooooooobobobobooboobooboobbooboOoboobDboobobooboobOooDbo
obooboooboobooobo

oboobOoobooboobooboboobOOoobOoOobOOoobObOoobOOoOobObOOobObOOobObOOobbOoobobo
goobooooboobuoobuoboboobuooboobo

goboobooboobooboobobooboboobooooboobooboobbooboboobobooboooboo
goboobooobooboobooboobooboobUooboobDOoOoboobDOoOoD

gooobooboboooooooboboooooobobboooooobbbooonoooobbbooooobo
oo oobobooooooboboboobboboooooboobobbogoo
gboooobooooobooboobboobbooboobooboboobobobboboobooboooao
goboooboooboobooboon



Our Milestones
oooooo

Corporate Information
oooo

Chairman'’s Statement
ooooo

Management Discussion and Analysis
gogooooog

Directors and Senior Management Profiles
goobooboooo

Report of the Directors
ogoood

Corporate Governance Report
gooooa

Independent Auditors’ Report
goooooao

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
Oooo0ooooooono

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ooooooo

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ooooooo

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
ooooooo

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
oooooooo

Three Years Financial Summary
gooooo






CORPORATE INFORMATION
oo

REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS
P. 0. Box 1350, 75 Fort Street,

Grand Cayman KY1-1108,

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTER AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN MALAYSIA

18, Jalan LP 2A/2, Taman Lestari Perdana,

43300 Seri Kembangan, Selangor,

Darul Ehsan, Malaysia

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Units 2201-3, Tai Tung Building,

8 Fleming Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Loh Swee Keong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tan Cheng Siong

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Yau Ka Hei

Mr. Chu King Ming

Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Chau Wing Kei, CPA

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. Tan Cheng Siong

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Chu King Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Yau Ka Hei

Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Yau Ka Hei (Chairman)

Mr. Tan Cheng Siong

Mr. Chu King Ming

oo0ooooooao
P.0. Box 1350, 75 Fort Street,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands

goooooboobooog

18, Jalan LP 2A/2, Taman Lestari Perdana,
43300 Seri Kembangan, Selangor,
Darul Ehsan, Malaysia

ggoooood
oo
oo0ooooaso
0000 2201-30

ogooad
Loh Swee KeongD Oy OO OOoOooo0n
Tan Cheng SiongO O

ggooood
ooood
oooood
ooooog

gooo
gboooooooooo

good
Tan Cheng SiongO O

ugooon
ooooooooo
ooood
oooood

ogoogn
obooooo
Tan Cheng SiongO O
gboooo

BMEBAERQT / 2017F K



CORPORATE INFORMATION
oo

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Loh Swee Keong (Chairman)

Mr. Yau Ka Hei

Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Mr. Loh Swee Keong
Ms. Chau Wing Kei, CPA

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Estera Trust (Cayman) Limited

P. 0. Box 1350, 75 Fort Street,

Grand Cayman KY1-1108,

Cayman Islands
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Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present the annual results of SK Target Group Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 May 2017.

The Company was successfully listed on the GEM Board of the Stock
Exchange on 19 July 2017 (the “Listing Date”). | would like to take
this opportunity and thank the professional parties and our staffs
involved in the listing.

For the year ended 31 May 2017, the revenue of the Group increased
by approximately 0.9% as compared to the financial year ended 31
May 2016. The revenue generated from the manufacturing and
trading of precast concrete junction boxes decreased by
approximately 1.7% while the Building Material and Services Business
Segment increased by approximately 19%.

During the year ended 31 May 2017, the overall market condition of
the precast concrete junction box industry (i.e. the industry in
relation to the manufacturing of both precast concrete
telecommunication junction box and precast concrete electrical
junction box) in Malaysia was relatively stable and is expected to
maintain steady growth in the coming years. Looking ahead to the
coming years, although certain challenging factors such as labour
shortages and dependency on foreign workers, and rising production
and transportation costs may exert pressure on the Group’s business
operations, the Group remains cautiously optimistic about the overall
business prospects.

To optimise the Group’s competitive advantages, in the future, the
Group intends to continue and to accelerate the implementation of
its strategies, namely (i) expansion of the Group’s production
capacity to meet the increasing future demand for precast concrete
junction boxes in Malaysia; (i) expansion of the Group's business
vertically by acquiring companies which manufacture junction box
covers and other accessories in Malaysia; and (iii) diversification of
the customer base for the Group's precast concrete
telecommunication junction boxes and its precast concrete electrical
junction boxes by penetrating its sales into other regions of Malaysia.
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Following our successful listing on the GEM Board of the Stock
Exchange in July 2017, the Group has established a strong capital
platform which will be conductive to taking the Group's business to
the next level.

During the Year, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, hamely
Target Precast Industries Sdn Bhd (“Target Precast”) entered into a
legally-binding Letter of Award with Telekom Malaysia Berhad
("Telekom”), which is a leading telecommunication company in
Malaysia with a history tracing back to 1946, in respect of the supply
and delivery of concrete junction boxes and junction box cover for a
term of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019. The
formal agreement in this respect had been signed and returned to
the Group on 1 August 2017 (the “Formal Agreement”).

Pursuant to the Formal Agreement, Target Precast was appointed as
a supplier to Telekom up to a total sum of approximately RM21.4
million during the term of the Formal Agreement.

In addition, the continued government interest and investment to
expand power distribution, telecommunication, civil infrastructures
coupled with the development of new commercial, industrial, and
residential areas remains the key drivers and opportunities for the
precast concrete telecommunication junction box and electrical
junction box manufacturing industry in Malaysia. In view of the
continuous growth of the precast concrete junction box industry, the
Directors are optimistic about the operating environment in Malaysia.

The Directors are also looking for appropriate investment
opportunities, especially on the vertical integration opportunity.
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Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all shareholders
and Board members for their support and efforts to the Group. I also
express my sincere gratitude to our customers and business
partners for continued support, as well as to my colleagues and
staffs for all their dedication, loyalty and contribution to the Group.

Loh Swee Keong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 August 2017
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The Group manufactures and sells precast concrete
telecommunication junction boxes and precast concrete electrical
junction boxes under our brand of “Target” in Malaysia. The Group's
precast concrete junction boxes are used in (i) telecommunication
and electrical infrastructures upgrade and expansion works; and (ii)
construction projects in Malaysia. They are buried underground to
deter tampering and are used to house and protect a junction with
telecommunication and electrical utility connection and distribution
access points from weather, changing elevation underground and
provide easy access for maintenance.

The Group has been a registered supplier or approved supplier of
various notable telecommunication companies such as Celcom
Axiata Berhad and Telekom Malaysia (“Telekom”) since 2008 and
registered supplier of Tenaga National Bhd. (“TNB"), the only electric
utility company, in Malaysia since 2012. Hence, the Group's precast
concrete junction boxes can be used in infrastructure or construction
projects involving the telecommunication companies and TNB.

For the year ended 31 May 2017, the revenue of the Group increased
slightly by approximately 0.9% due to an increase in the revenue
generated from trading of accessories and pipes and the provision of
mobile crane rental and ancillary services. On the other hand, the
demand for the Group’s precast concrete junction boxes dropped
slightly compared to the previous year. This was mainly due to the
fact that many of the projects of our customers were at their
completion stage and as such the orders for junction boxes were
reducing.

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2017

ooo0Oo0ooOooOo0OoOooOTargetd OO0O
ooo0ooooOO0ooOOoDOO0oDbDOo0OOobOoboO0noo
00000000 0ooooooooooono
000oO0o00ooOoOoooOooOoGoooon
oO0o0ooOoooooooOoDooobooDono
oboo0oooo0oooOooOooOooOooood
oboboo0oOooOooOobOOooOOonoooonag
ooooooDo

gpoopOoze0c0o0oboobooooOo
Celcom Axiata Berhad O Telekom Malaysia
MTelekomODO OOODODO0DODOOOOOOO
0 0O 20120 O O Tenaga Nasional BhdD TNBLL
g0b0o0o0ooOoOOoOobObOOoOoooooooo
Oo0o0o0Do0ooooDOoo0ooooooooon
goOo0o0OOoTNBODODOODOO

002017050310 00000000000O0
oboooooo0ooOoO0ooOocOooOooood
0000000000 000000000.9%0
oooooooooo0ooooOoOooboooOoonog
oboob0ooooO0OOocO0ooO0oocOooOooooao
obooboooooOooO0oocOooOoocOoocooo
oo



Looking forward, the Directors consider that the future opportunities
and challenges facing the Group will largely depend on the
construction works for utilities infrastructure and new development
area construction. The Directors are of the view that the continued
government interest and investment to expand power distribution,
telecommunication, civil infrastructures coupled with the
development of new commercial, industrial, and residential areas
remains the key drivers and opportunities for the precast concrete
telecommunication junction box and electrical junction box
manufacturing industry in Malaysia. Further, the Directors expect
that the growth of the Group will be sustained by the Formal
Agreement because it is the first agreement entered directly
between Group and Telekom without the involvement of contractors
or subcontractors, therefore it allows the Group to capture a higher
profile margin in the sales of its precast concrete junction boxes.
With the Group's experienced management team and ability to
deliver a wide range of high quality precast concrete junction boxes,
the Directors consider that the Group is well-positioned to compete
against its competitors, and the Group will continue to pursue the
following key business strategies: (i) expand the Group's production
capacity at the existing production plant located at Lot 1894-A JLN
KPB 5, Kawasan Perindustrian Balakong, 43300 Seri Kembangan,
Selangor (the “Existing Selangor Plant”) and complete the
establishment of the newly established plant in Plot A of land held
GM 865, Lot 2945 in the Mukim Senai District, Kulaijaya, State of
Johor (the “New Kulaijaya Plant”); (ii) acquire of the parcel of land
in Southern Malaysia on which the New Kulaijaya Plant is situated or
a parcel of land in its peripheral area; (iii) continue to expand the
Group’s sales and marketing team; and (iv) expand the Group’s
business vertically in the supply chain of the precast concrete
junction box industry through mergers and acquisitions by utilizing
the net proceeds from the Listing of the Shares on GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 19 July 2017.

The revenue increased from approximately RM33.3 million for the
year ended 31 May 2016 to approximately RM33.6 million for the
year ended 31 May 2017, representing a growth of approximately
0.9%. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in the revenue
generated from the trading of accessories and pipes and provision of
mobile crane rental and ancillary services.

000000000000 oOooOoooooo
000000000000000000000
goooobObObOo0o0oOoobobobobooooo
0000000000000 o0ooooooo
000000000000000000000
o000 oUUooo
0000000000000 oooooooo
000000000000000000000
OTelekomOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
00000000000 00000O0OOoOooo
000000000000000000000
ddddd0doO0o0o0oooooooobooooboo
0000000000000 0O0ooOooooa
000000000000000000000
Oo00oooO0oOoooOoOo@GooooooOoo
Lot 1894-A JLN KPB 5, Kawasan Perindustrian
Balakong, 43300 Seri Kembangan, SelangorQ
000 odoooobOOooooo
000000000000 Mukim Senai 2945
O0000OGM8ssO0DADDDNONODOODOOO
do0o0oOoOoOo@ooooooooooma
0000000000000 000ooooon
((l0DODOO0OO0OO0O0OO0000000000 (v)
gpooooz0M7070190000000000
0000000000000 O0O0oooooo
00000000000000000

0000020605030 0000333000
O000002017050310000033600
00000009 0000000000000
gobooobooooboobooooboooao
ooooooboooo

HRBREEAERART / 2017F K



The Group’s revenue generated from the trading of accessories and
pipes and the provision of mobile crane rental and ancillary services
increased by approximately 19%, from approximately RM4.2 million
for the year ended 31 May 2016 to approximately RM5.0 million for
the year ended 31 May 2017. The increase was mainly caused by the
increase in sales of scrap metals.

Costs of sales mainly consists of (i) cost of raw materials and trading
products; (i) manufacturing overheads; (iii) direct labour; and (iv)
crane hiring costs. The cost of sales decreased slightly from
approximately RM23.4 million for the year ended 31 May 2016 to
approximately RM23.2 million for the year ended 31 May 2017,
representing a decrease of approximately 0.8%. Such change was
mainly attributable to (i) the decrease in sale of precast concrete
junction boxes for year ended 31 May 2017; and (i) the decrease in
the average unit price of ready-mix concrete by approximately
RM28.2 per m3, or 13.6%, resulting from a relatively lower price of
ready-mix concrete offered by the Group’s suppliers during the year
ended 31 May 2017.

The total cost of sales from the manufacturing and sale of precast
concrete junction boxes decreased from approximately RM19.5
million for the year ended 31 May 2016 to approximately RM18.3
million for the year ended 31 May 2017.

The Gross Profit increased from approximately RM9.9 million for the
year ended 31 May 2016 to approximately RM10.4 million for the
year ended 31 May 2017.

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by approximately
RM1.1 million or 50% from approximately RM2.2 million for the year
ended 31 May 2016 to approximately RM3.3 million for the year
ended 31 May 2017.

The Group's administrative expenses mainly consisted of salaries,
welfare and other benefits, rent and rates, general office expenses,
depreciation and professional service fees. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in staff costs paid to Directors and staff
due to business expansion and audit fee and other professional
costs in relation to the compliance with the GEM Listing Rules during
the year.
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Selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased by
approximately RM0.07 million or 5.6% from approximately RM1.26
million for the year ended 31 May 2016 to approximately RM1.33
million for the year ended 31 May 2017.

The Group's selling and distribution expenses mainly consisted of
salaries, welfare and other benefits for sales and marketing staff and
travelling and entertainment expenses. The slight increase of selling
and distribution expenses was mainly due to the increase in salaries,
welfare and other benefits.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately RM1.1 million for the
year ended 31 May 2017 due to the net effect of (i) a non-recurring
Listing expenses of approximately RMé million for its Listing exercise
during the year ended 31 May 2017, (ii) the increase in the
administrative expenses incurred by the Group for the year ended 31
May 2017; (iii) the slight decrease in the cost of sales of the Group for
the year ended 31 May 2017 and (iv) the slight increase in revenue of
the Group for the year ended 31 May 2017.

The Group's operation is subject to general economic and market
risks which may affect the competition and profitability of
construction projects. The Group's key risk exposures are
summarised as follows:

(@  Fluctuation in the prices of our major raw materials may have
adverse impacts on the Group’s financial results;

(b)  The Group's revenue is mainly derived from the manufacturing
and sale of precast concrete junction boxes to its customers
for infrastructure upgrades and expansion work for
construction projects, which are non-recurrent in nature and
there is no guarantee that the customers will place new
business purchase orders; and

(c) The Group’s cash flow position may deteriorate owing to a
mismatch between the time of receipt of payments from its
customers and payments to its suppliers if the Group is unable
to manage its cash flow mismatch properly.
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For other risks and uncertainties facing the Group, please refer to
the section headed "Risks Factors” in the prospectus of the Group
dated 6 July 2017 (the “Prospectus”).

As a manufacturer of precast concrete junction boxes, the Group
has to purchase raw materials from its suppliers from time to time
based on its procurement policy. The Group relies on cash inflow
from its customers to meet its payment obligations to our suppliers.
The Group's cash inflow is dependent on the prompt settlement of
its payments. As at 31 May 2017, the Group recorded trade
receivables amounting to approximately RM13.1 million, the number
of trade receivables turnover days was approximately 143 days
which exceeded the credit period stipulated on the Group’s service
agreements with its customers with average trade payable turnover
days of approximately 79 days. The Group is exposed to credit risk
and liquidity risk. For further details, please refer to note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 May 2017, the Group's cash and cash equivalents was
approximately RM8.3 million (31 May 2016: approximately RM4.5
million).

As at 31 May 2017, the Group’s total borrowings were approximately
RMO.6 million (31 May 2016: approximately RM0.8 million).

As at 31 May 2017, the Group current ratio was 2.6 (31 May 2016:
2.0), which is calculated based on the total current assets divided by
the total current liabilities. The gearing ratio was approximately 3.2%
as at 31 May 2017 (31 May 2016: 6.7%), which is calculated based on
the total interest-bearing loans divided by the total equity.

As at 31 May 2017, the Group had no bank borrowings (2016:
approximately RM0.6 million). The gearing ratio, calculated based on
the total borrowings divided by total equity at the end of the year
and multiplied by 100%, decreased from approximately 6.7% as at 31
May 2016 to approximately 3.2% as at 31 May 2017 due to
repayment of all bank borrowings in full. The Group's financial
position is sound and strong. With available bank balances and cash
and bank credit facilities, the Group has sufficient liquidity to satisfy
its funding requirements.
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The shares of the Company were successfully listed on the GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange on 19 July 2017. There has been no
change in the capital structure of the Group since then. The share
capital of the Group only comprises of ordinary shares.

As at 31 May 2017, the share capital and equity attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to approximately RM57 and
approximately RM18.5 million respectively (31 May 2016: Nil and
RM11.6 million respectively). Details of the capital risk management
are set out in the note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 May 2017, the Group had capital commitments in respect of
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment totalling RM117,000
(31 May 2016: Nil).

Since a substantial amount of income and profit of our Group is
denominated in Malaysian Ringgit (“RM”"), any fluctuations in the
value of RM may adversely affect the amount of dividends, if any,
payable to the Shares in HK$ to our Shareholders. Furthermore,
fluctuations in the RM’s value against other currencies will create
foreign currency translation gains or losses and may have an adverse
effect on our Group’s business, financial condition and results of
operations. Any imposition, variation or removal of foreign exchange
controls may adversely affect the value, translated or converted into
HKS$, of our Group's net assets, earnings or any declared dividends.
Consequently, this may adversely affect our Group's ability to pay
dividends or satisfy other foreign exchange requirements.

As at 31 May 2017, the Group had bank deposits pledged with banks
totalling approximately RM1.1 million (31 May 2016: approximately
RM1.3 million). These deposits were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

Ooo0ooo20M707019000000000
o0oo0o0o0oocoOooOooOooOOoDOooonoa
ooooOoooooooad

02017050310 00000000000C0O00O
000005700 0185000 032016050
oo0oo0ooNéeDmOOOOUO
Oo0o0o0oO0ooooooooooz/o

020170503100000000000000
O0oO0o0ooo0ooOoo0oO17,0000 0320160 5
0310000

obooooooOdooOoO0OOoOoOooOoOooOood
oo oocooooOobooooboooon
ooooooooooOooomoooooog
oboodooooooo0OOoO0oOobOOoo0oOooOooa
obobooboobOooooOooOoOoocooooo
o0oo0oo0ooOooOoooOooOoDbOooDoo
obooO0ooO0ooO0o0Oo0o0oo0oO00OO000000d
obooooooOoocOooOoocOoboOooboooa
o0o0OooOobDOobOOoDOO0o0ob0O0ooobDonog
oboooooo0oooooOooOooooood
oooooo

020170503100 00000000000
OO0O0O000110000020160503100
013000000000000000000
oo0oOo0oDO0o0oDOoOO0o0ooo

HRBREEAERART / 2017F K



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

googogth

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS, AND PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save for the reorganisation in relation to the listing of the shares of
the Company, there were no significant investment held, nor other
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies during the year ended 31 May 2017. There is no future
plan for material investments or capital assets as at 31 May 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 May 2017, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(31 May 2016: Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 May 2017, we had 65 employees who are located in
Malaysia and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The
Group generally recruits employees from the open market by placing
recruitment advertisements. The Group entered into individual labour
contracts with each of the employees in accordance with the
applicable labour laws of Malaysia and the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, which cover matters such as wages,
employee benefits and grounds for termination. The remuneration
package that the Group offers to the employees includes salary,
bonuses, allowances and medical benefits. In general, the Group
determines an employee’s salary based on each employee’s
qualifications, experience and capability and the prevailing market
remuneration rate. The Group has designed a review system to
assess the performance of our employees once a year, which forms
the basis of our decisions with respect to salary adjustments,
bonuses and promotions.

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

Given that the Share Offer was completed after 31 May 2017, the
implementation plan as set out in the section headed “Future plans
and use of proceeds” of the Prospectus will commence during the
year ending 31 May 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Ooooooon

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE SHARE OFFER Oo0o0o00oOoooonboa

The shares of the Company were listed on 19 July 2017 onthe GEM 000000 201707019000000000
by Share Offer. The Offer Price was HK$0.28 per Offer Share. Thenet 0000000000000 O00O00O0028000
proceeds received by the Company from the Share Offer, after DOO0O0D0O0DO0OO0O0OO0OO0O0OOOOOOOO
deducting underwriting fees and other expenses, were 000000000000 29.600000
approximately HK$29.6 million.

The net proceeds from the Listing have not been utilised uptothe OO0OO0O0OO0OO0O0OO0OOO0OOOOOOOOOO
date of report in accordance with the proposed applications setout 0000000000000 O0O0OOOOOO
in the section “Net Proceeds from The Share Offer” of the DO0OO0O0ODO0OO0OO0ODOODOO0OOOODOOOOOOO
announcement “Offer Price and Allotment Results”. The table below 0000000000 COOO0O0O0OOO0OOO
lists out the proposed applications of the net proceeds and usuage

up to the date of report.

Net proceeds Amount Unutilised
from the utilised up to balance up to
share offer 31 May 2017 31 May 2017
oooa 0020170 0020170

oooag 50310 50 310
oo ooooo ooooo

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
oooao oooo oooo

Expansion of production capacity Oooooooooo

through
() expanding our Existing Selangor () OOO0O0O0O00O0O

Plant a0 7.0 = 7.0
(i) completing the establishment (i) 00000000

of our New Kulaijaya Plant and ooooa 7.3 - 7.3
(i) recruiting new staff (i) ODoooo 2.6 - 2.6
Acquisition of a parcel of land in O0o0oO0oooooooo
Southern Malaysia 8.4 - 8.4

Expansion of our business vertically 00000000000
in the supply chain of the precast Ooooooooooo

concrete junction box industry oooooao

through mergers and acquisitions 27 - 2.7
Expansion of our salesand marketing 00000000000

team 0.8 - 0.8
General working capital oooooao 0.8 = 0.8
Total oo 29.6 - 29.6

The Directors will constantly evaluate the Group’s business 0000000000000 O0O0O0DO0OO00OO
objectives and will change or modify plans against the changing OOO0O0O0OO0O0O0O0OO0O0O0O0O0OOOOOOO
market conditions to ascertain the business growth of the Group. ooooo
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As at the date of this report, the Directors do not anticipate any
change to the plan as to the use of proceeds.

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31 May
2017:

(@ The Company has conditionally adopted a share option
scheme on 27 June 2017, summary of terms and conditions of
which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix IV “Statutory and General Information” to
the Prospectus. No share option has been granted since the
adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

(b)  On 27 June 2017, the authorized share capital of the Company
was increased to HK$4,399,900 by the creation of an additional
of 439,990,000 issued at a price of HK$0.01 each.

() On 19 July 2017, the Company was successfully listed on the
GEM Board of the Stock Exchange.

(d On 24 February 2017, the Company entered into a legally-
binding collaboration agreement with Buhmi Precast Sdn Bhd
in order to secure punctual supply of ready-mix concrete. Up
to reporting date, no transaction was resulted from the
collaboration agreement yet. Details of the collaboration
agreement are set out in the paragraph headed “Collaboration
with a Ready-mix Concrete Supplier” in the Business section of
the Prospectus.

(e) on 1 August 2017, Telekom signed and returned the Formal
Agreement between the Company'’s wholly-owned subsidiary,
namely Target Precast and Telekom in Respect of the Supply
and Delivery of Concrete Junction Boxes and Junction Box
Cover for a term of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2019.

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2017

gobooooobooooboooboooobo
obooooooo

oopDo20M7050310000000000

goooogo2017060270000000
oooOoooocoOOoOoooboOooooao
ooomoooooooOonoooogno
gooboobOOoOoO0o0o0oooooboooboboo
ooo

020170602700 0O 0O O 0O O
4399900000 00 00O0O0O0MOOOCOO
ooobDo0oooooooooooao
4,399,000 0O

020177070190 0000000000O
oooooo

020170202400000000000
00000000 Buhmi Precast Sdn Bhd
0000000000 OooO0O0oO0Oooao
0000000000000 00000
ooobOb0oOoOooboboOoooboooo
0000000000000000

020170 80 100TelekomO O O O O
00000000 OdTarget Precastdd
TeekomO OO OOOOOOOOOOO
0o0O000O0DoDOooooooo201701
0100020190 120310000000



Mr. Loh Swee Keong, aged 50, is the founder of the group. He was
appointed to the Board on 28 October 2016 and is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee of the Company. He is responsible for
the overall business strategy, approving annual budget proposals,
and major business decisions of the group. Mr. Loh has over 20
years of work experience in the precast concrete junction box
industry. Mr. Loh completed his secondary school from five level
education in Tsung Wah National Type Secondary School, Kuala
Kangsar, Perak, Malaysia in November 1985.

Before establishing the group, Mr. Loh established a sole
proprietorship under the name Jackon Trading in 1989, where he
was primarily involved in the supply of ready-mix concrete to
construction companies in Malaysia. In March 1993, Mr. Loh co-
founded Target Precast, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
group which was at that time primarily involved in the supply of
ready-mix concrete to construction companies, negotiating business
with customers and responsible for the daily operations of the group.
In 1995, Mr. Loh, for the first time, manufactured the moulds using
the then existing technology for precast concrete junction boxes and
commenced the production and manufacturing of precast junction
concrete boxes to customers.
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Mr. Tan Cheng Siong, aged 37, is an Executive Director of the
group. Mr. Tan was appointed to the Board on 9 December 2016 and
is a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is
responsible for reviewing the planning, and management of the
business. He is also involved in the sales and marketing activities
which include negotiating business with customers. Mr. Tan joined
the group as a business development executive in November 2014.
Mr. Tan graduated with a Bachelor ‘s degree of Commerce majoring
in Accounting and Finance from the Curtin University of Technology
in Australia in February 2002.

In May 2002, Mr. Tan worked as an audit assistant with Y C Tan & Co,
a public accounting firm in Singapore. He was later promoted to the
post of senior audit officer in May 2004. Mr. Tan later joined Kuek
Brothers Furniture Sdn. Bhd. in 2005, a manufacturer distributors and
exporters in home furnishing in Malaysia, as a marketing executive
where he was responsible for handling the company’s export
markets. In 2006, Mr. Tan was subsequently promoted as a branch
assistant manager in both the Muar and Kulai branches of Malaysia
where he was responsible for handling the company’s retail
businesses. From September 2007 to February 2008, Mr. Tan worked
as a sales and marketing manager in T & L Office Solution Sdn. Bhd.,
a supplier in all kind of office equipment. In 2008, Mr. Tan set up
Billion Tree Asia, a consulting firm providing financial analytical
coaching services to clients. Mr. Tan had been a director of Billion
Tree Asia from 2008 to 2015. The company became inactive since
2015.
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Mr. Yau Ka Hei (O O O ), aged 33, was appointed as our Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 27 June 2017
and is a member of the Audit Committee, and Nomination Committee
and chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Yau
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since October 2016. He obtained his Bachelor's degree of Business
Administration in Business Economics from the City University of Hong
Kong in November 2007.

In September 2007, Mr. Yau was employed as an associate of the
assurance department of PricewaterhouseCoopers where he was
responsible for evaluating internal control environments and system
processes, and identifying opportunities for improving companies’
internal controls, operation workflows and integrity of financial
records. He then joined the Bank of Communications in August 2010
as an officer of the company’s finance department where he was
responsible for, among others, preparing IFRS financial reports to the
head office in the PRC and external auditors. From February 2011 to
November 2011, he worked as a senior accountant at the assurance
department of Ernst & Young. From June 2012 to August 2016, Mr.
Yau worked as an internal auditor of Kaisun Energy Group Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 8203) a
company engaged in (i) mining and metallurgical machineries
production; (i) provision of supply chain management for mineral
business; (iii) exploitation and production of coal; and (iv) securities
investment where he was responsible for among others, (a)
preparing internal control report of operational and financial
processes and reporting to the audit committee of the company; and
(b) performing due diligence providing advice of the operational and
financial arrangements for merger and acquisition projects.
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From October 2016 to February 2017, Mr. Yau worked in Deckers
Asia Pacific Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Deckers Outdoor
Corporation (a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange) as
an internal auditor, where he was responsible for validating audit on
operation and finance management. From June 2017 to August 2017,
Mr. Yau worked as an assistant account manager of Magico Group
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of China Properties
Group Limited (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock
code 1838), a company engaged in property development and
property investment in the PRC, where he is responsible for
overseeing accounting activities of the company. Mr. Yau is currently
finance manager of a private limited company in Hong Kong, which
engaged in energy trading business.

Mr. Chu Kin Ming (0 O O ), aged 37, was appointed as our Independent
Non-executive Director on 27 June 2017 and is a member of Remuneration
Committee and Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Chu obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003. Mr. Chu has more than 15
years working experience in the accounting and company secretarial field.

Mr. Chu is currently a financial controller and company secretary of
KEE Holding Company Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 2011) and Ascent International Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Chanco International Group Limited) (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 264), both of
which are subsidiaries of ZhongHong Holdings Limited (a company
listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code 979).

Mr. Chu is a member of (i) the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants; (ii) the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants; (iii) the Hong Kong Chartered Secretaries; and (iv) the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick (O O O ), aged 36, was appointed as
our Independent Non-executive Director on 27 June 2017 and is a
member of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Lee obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics
and Music from Emory University, United States in December 2007.
Further, he is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors since
July 2017.

From May 2005 to April 2008, Mr. Lee worked in various institutions
whereby he, inter alia, advised on business strategies in relation to
acquisition or investment opportunities. For the period between April
2011 to May 2012, Mr. Lee worked for the group companies of
Morgan Stanley, Hong Kong as an analyst in the international wealth
management division in Hong Kong where he was responsible for
expanding PRC client base. Mr. Lee then worked in the capacity of
vice president of the private banking department for Credit Suisse,
Hong Kong for the period between August 2012 to January 2013.
From February 2014 to June 2015, Mr. Lee worked for BOCI-
Prudential Asset Management Limited as vice president of the
quantitative strategy business unit of the company. He is currently
an investment director of First Impression Limited, a consulting firm,
where he was responsible for, inter alia, advising on investment
structures and implementing investment strategy aimed to enhance
risk management.
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Mr. Phang Xue Zun, aged 32, is the chief project officer of the
group. He is responsible for providing pre-sales support to our
customers and handling technical supporting activities with our sales
and marketing team. Mr. Phang obtained his Diploma in Construction
Management from the Imperia Institute of Technology, Malaysia in
February 2006.

Mr. Phang joined the group in November 2005 as a production
supervisor where he was responsible for handling our production
activities in our production plant. He was subsequently promoted as
the sales engineer in May 2008 where he was primarily responsible
for sales and marketing activities of the group and managing projects
for customers in Klang Valley and the eastern coast of West Malaysia.
Mr. Phang was then promoted as the assistant sales manager in
September 2014 and was further promoted as the chief project
officer in January 2016. In October 2013, Mr. Phang and other
Independent Third Parties established Five Stars Laundry Sdn. Bhd.,
a company engaged in the business of providing laundry, washing,
cleaning and drying services. Mr. Phang is currently a director and
shareholder of the company.

Ms. Chau Wing Kei (0 O O ), aged 30, joined the group and was
appointed as the company secretary of the group on 9 December
2016. She graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor’s degree in Science in November 2008. She has been a
fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since March 2014.

She possesses over six years of experience in aspect of financial
reporting, accounting, compliance, and auditing. From September
2010 to July 2014, Ms. Chau had worked as an auditor in Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu and her work mainly involved audit and assurance
services. In February 2015, Ms. Chau joined Illinois Tool Works Inc.
and her last position was senior internal auditor and she was
responsible for performing financial and operational reviews of the
subsidiaries.
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Mr. Albert Wong Mun Sum, aged 54, is the chief financial officer
of the group. He is responsible for the daily operations and the
financial and accounting activities of the group. Mr. Wong obtained
his Bachelor s degree of commerce from the University of New
South Wales in April 1986 where he further obtained a Master 's
degree of commerce in accounting in April 1988. Mr. Wong has been
a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants since October
1993. He was admitted as a fellow of the Institute of Financial
Accountants in the United Kingdom and the Institute of Public
Accountants in November 2012 in Melbourne, Australia. He is also a
registered GST agent in Malaysia since 2015. Mr. Wong has over 20
years of experience in the banking and accounting field.

Before joining our Group in December 2015, Mr. Wong worked as a
senior manager in the finance and accounts division of S&P Food
Manufacturing (M) Berhad for the period from September 1997 to
November 1999. In April 2000, Mr. Wong joined the Econstates
Berhad as its senior manager and then promoted as the general
manager of the finance department of the company. In July 2004, Mr.
Wong worked as the finance controller of the finance department of
Haisan Resources Berhad. He then joined the Ireka Development
Management Sdn. Bhd. in April 2008 and worked as a senior vice
president of the corporate finance department. In December 2009,
Mr. Wong joined the Quill Construction Sdn. Bhd. as the Chief
Accountant. In July 2010, he was transferred to Quill Automobiles (M)
Sdn. Bhd. as the finance director of the finance department of the
company. In October 2011, Mr. Wong joined the Montprimo Sdn.
Bhd. (formerly known as Macrodon Sdn. Bhd.) as the general
manager of the finance department and was transferred to Fivestar
Development (Puchong) Sdn. Bhd. where all the terms and conditions
of his employment remain unchanged. He subsequently joined the
Hatten Asset Management Sdn. Bhd. as the financial controller in
December 2013.
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Mr. Ma Hong Chee, aged 49 is the operations manager of the
group. He is responsible for overseeing the production activities of
our production plant. Mr. Ma completed SRP, Malaysia Sekolah
Menengah Tanah Putih, Kuantan, Pahang.

From October 1996 to April 2010, Mr. Ma joined Grobest Frozen (M)
Sdn., Bhd. where he was responsible for (i) setting up the processing
plant operation system; (i) in production planning and operation; (iii)
monitoring purchasing flow and supplier management flow; and (iv)
implementing and managing marketing programmes. His last
position with the company was manager.

Ms. Siew Poi Voon, aged 39 is the factory manager. She is
responsible for overseeing the manufacturing and operations of the
production activities of the group. Ms. Siew joined the group as a
human resource and administration executive in March 2013 and
was promoted as our assistant factory manager in April 2015. Ms.
Siew was subsequently appointed as our factory manager in August
2016. Ms. Siew obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Human Development
from the University Putra Malaysia in July 2001.

From August 2001 to March 2003, Ms. Siew worked as the human
resource officer of YP Precision (M) Sdn. Bhd. where she was
responsible for general human resource functions which include
payroll, training and development, recruitment as well as matters
pertaining to foreign workers in the company. She subsequently
joined the Delcol Water Solution Sdn. Bhd. in April 2003 as a human
resource executive. In December 2007, Ms. Siew joined Jordone
Corporation Sdn. Bhd. as a human resource and administration
executive. She was subsequently promoted to the post of assistant
administrative manager in August 2009 where she was responsible
for the company’s purchasing, advertising and branding (including
media and branding) as well as general administration duties.
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The Board is pleased to present their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 May 2017.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the Company's subsidiary
are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Group is principally engaged in (i) manufacturing and trading of
precast junction boxes, (i) trading of accessories and pipes and (iii)
provision of mobile crane rental and ancillary services in Malaysia.

During the Year, the Group has compiled with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of the
Group.

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 38 to 53 of this annual report.

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution by principal
business segments during the Year are set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of business review of the Group for the year ended 31 May
2017 is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 5 to 7 and the business review and outlook of the Group is set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 8 to 16 of this annual report. The discussion and analysis of
the Group's performance during the Year and the material factor
underlying its financial performance and financial position are set out
in the “Three Years Financial summary” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on page 128 and pages 8 to 16
respectively.
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The result of the Group for the year ended 31 May 2017 and the state
of the affairs of the Group as at that date are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income on page 61.

During the Year, no interim dividend (2016: RM2 million) was
declared and paid.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 May 2017 (2016: Nil).

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

A summary of published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last three financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statement and the Prospectus, is set out on page 128 on
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the Company’s share capital and movements of during the
Year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position and in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity set out on pages 62 to 64 respectively.
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DISTRIBUTION RESERVES

As at 31 May 2017, the Company’s reserve available for distribution
which consists of share premium, retained profit and the aggregate
amount of reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company amounted to approximately RM9.9 million (2016:
RM11.0 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the law of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the year ended
31 May 2017.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that our employees, customers and suppliers
are key stakeholders to the Group’s success. The Group strive to
achieve corporate sustainability through engaging employees,
providing quality products and services to our customers,
collaborating with suppliers to deliver quality sustainable products
and services and supporting our community.

googd
020170503100000000000000
oobDoooooooOo0ooooOoOooooOoong
Ooooo99000m20m60011.0000
o

gooon
oO0oooooO0oDbDOoOoOoo0ooooOOoDog
oboo00o0oooOooooooOooOooood
oooooo

goooobooooooad

002017060310 000000000000
obooo0ooocoooOooooOooooood
oo

goooooood
o0o0O0o0o0oooo0oooooooooboonoag
obo0o0Oob0OOooooO0OoO0OOoOooOod
obob0ooocOoOoocOoooOooOooOooo
obobOooOoo0OooOooo0Oooooooboooo
ooooooooooooo

BMEBARAR / 2017 5# ‘ 27 ‘



During the Year, the top five customers together accounted for
approximately 19.8% of the Group’s revenue and the Group's largest
customer accounted for approximately 3.9% of the Group'’s revenue.

During the Year, the top five suppliers together accounted for
approximately 39.6% of the Group's purchases and the Group's
largest supplier accounted for approximately 9.4% of the Group's
purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in these major customers and suppliers.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Directors were:

Mr. Loh Swee Keong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tan Cheng Siong

Mr. Yau Ka Hei
Mr. Chu Kin Ming
Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick

(appointed on 27 June 2017)
(appointed on 27 June 2017)
(appointed on 27 June 2017)

By virtue of Articles 108 and 112 of the articles of association of the
Company, all the Directors shall retire at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election at the said
meeting.

Each of the Executive Directors, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and Mr.
Tan Cheng Siong, has entered into a service or an appointment letter
with the Company for a fixed term of three years, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’ written notice served by
either party on the other, and is subject to termination provisions
therein and provisions on retirement by rotation of Directors as set
out in Articles.
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Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a
service or an appointment letter with the Company for a fixed term
of three years, which may be terminated by not less than one
months’ written notice served by either party on the other, and is
subject to termination provisions therein and provisions on
retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in Articles.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract or an
appointment letter which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographies details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 17 to 24.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS' REMUNERATION
Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individual's remuneration are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year and at any time during the Year.

INTERESTS OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS IN
CONTRACTS

No contract of significance has been entered during the Year
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholders or any its subsidiaries.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into.
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No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the Year.

The controlling shareholders, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and the
company through which he holds equity interests in the Company,
namely Merchant World Investments Limited, have entered into a
Deed of Non-Competition with the Company on 27 June 2017. The
details of the Deed of Non-Competition have been disclosed in the
Prospectus.

The controlling shareholders have confirmed with the Company that
they had complied with the non-competition undertakings during the
year ended 31 May 2017. The Directors (including the Independent
Non-executive Directors) have reviewed and confirmed the
compliance with the non-competition undertaking by the controlling
shareholders.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as of the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float or not less than 25% of the
Shares are in the hands of the public as required under the GEM
Listing Rules.

As at 31 May 2017, none of the Directors, nor the substantial
shareholders of the Company and any their respective close
associates has any interest in a business which competes or likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

As notified by RHB Capital Hong Kong Limited (“RHB Capital”),
compliance adviser of the Company, except for (i) RHB Capital’s
participation as the sole sponsor in relation to the Listing; and (i) the
compliance adviser agreement entered into between the Company
and RHB Capital dated 27 June 2017, neither RHB Capital nor any of
its close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) and none of
the directors or employees of RHB Capital had any interest in the
share capital of our Company or any member of our Group (including
options or rights to subscribe for such securities, if any) which is
required to be notified to our Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the
GEM Listing Rules as of 31 May 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 May 2017, the interests and short position of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO (i) as required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or/or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFQ),
or (i) as required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Sections 352 of the SFO, or (iii) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

ordinary Shares of the Company

Capacity/

Nature of Interest

obooboooo

Interest in controlled
corporation
goooooao

Mr. Loh Swee Keong (Note 2)

Loh Swee KeongO O [7 [7 200
Notes:
(1) The letter (L) denotes the person’s long interest in the Shares.
(2)  Merchant World Investments Limited is a company incorporated in the
BVI and is wholly-owned by Mr. Loh Swee Keong. Mr. Loh Swee Keong

is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Merchant World
Investments Limited for the purpose of the SFO.
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317,020,000 (L) 51.13%
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Save for disclosed above, as at 31 May 2017, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO (i) as required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and/or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO), or (i) as
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or (iii) as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

As at 31 May 2017, the following persons (other than a Directors or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed of the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 and SFO were as
follows:
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ordi

Merchant World Investments Limited

nary Shares of the Company

Capacity/

Nature of Interest
goooooo

Beneficial owner

Merchant World Investments Limited ooooo
Ms. Woon Sow Sum (Note 2) Interest of spouse
Woon Sow SumO 00 O O 20 gooad

Greater Elite Holdings Limited
Greater Elite Holdings Limited

Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul (Note 3)

od

Ms. Cheng Lai Wah Christina (Note 4)
Cheng Lai Wah Christina0O O [0 [0 40

Notes:

M

@

Beneficial owner
ooooo

Interest in controlled
corporation

O000oOoa30 oOooOoooo

Interest of spouse

gooo

The letter (L) denotes the person'’s long interest in the Shares.

Ms. Woon Sow Sum is the spouse of Mr. Loh Swee Keong and is
deemed, or taken to be interested in all Shares in which Mr. Loh Swee
Keong has interest under the SFO.

Greater Elite Holdings Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI and
is wholly-owned by Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul. Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Greater Elite
Holdings Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Ms. Cheng Lai Wah Christina is the spouse of Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul
and is deemed, or taken to be interested in all Shares in which Mr. Law
Fung Yuen Paul has interest under the SFO.

Save for disclosed above, as at 31 May 2017, the Company has not

been

notified by any person (other than the Directors or the chief

executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the

Stock

Exchange under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO or as required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Number of Approximate

Shares percentage of
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317,020,000 (L) 51.13%
317,020,000 (L) 51.13%
122,980,000 (L) 19.84%
122,980,000 (L) 19.84%
122,980,000 (L) 19.84%

ooo

M

oooo@oooooOooOooooo

Woon Sow SumO O O Loh Swee KeongO O 0O O
0000000000000 OOODOLoh
SweeKeongD OO OOOOOOOOOOODO
oo

Greater Elite Holdings LimitedD0 D DO DO OODO
0000000000000 0000000
00000000000 0000000000
O Greater Elite Holdings LimitedD OO OO 0O
oooooo

Cheng Lai Wah Christna0 00 O0O0OoQOoooQ
goooooooboooboobboooboo
poooobobobooooboboboon

0000000000 20170503100000
oo0ooo0oO0ooooobOOoocoboOooonoa
ooobooooooooooooooonog
000000000 0oo0oOXxvoo203000
oobooobDobOooOobOooooboooooo
0000000000 000000336000
oooooooooood

HHREBAERADT / 2017F 3K



The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the
best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full time and part time), or any member of the Group,
including any Executive, Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors, advisors, consultants of the Group.

The Company conditionally adopted the Share Option Scheme on 27
June 2017 whereby the Board is authorised, at its absolute discretion
and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant
options to the Eligible Participants to subscribe for the shares of the
Company. The Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a
period of ten years from the date of the grant of option.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue upon the date of the shares of the
Company listed on the GEM, being 62,000,000 shares (or such
numbers of shares as shall result from a subdivision or a
consolidation of such 62,000,000 from time to time) (the “Scheme
Limit"). Subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting, the
Board may (i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of the approval by the shareholders in general
meeting; and/or (i) grant options beyond the Scheme Limit to Eligible
Participants specifically identified by the Board.

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme an any other share option scheme of the Company
at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time. No options shall be granted under any schemes of the
Company (including the Share Option Scheme) if this will result in the
limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company to each Participants in any twelve months
period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Any further grant
of options is subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting
with such Eligible Participants and his associates abstaining from
voting.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant to
the provisions of early termination thereof.

An offer for the grant must be accepted within seven days inclusive
of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable by
the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer
for the grant of an options is HK$1.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the participants may
subscribe for the shares of the Company on exercise of an option at
the price determined by the Board provided that it shall be at least
the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing prices of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the share.

Save for disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the
Company, its or any of its holding companies or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors and
the Chief Executives (including their spouses and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares, or
underlying shares, or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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During the Year, there were no connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules which are required to comply with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules. Details of the significant
related party transactions undertaken in the usual course of business
are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. None
of these related party transactions constitute a disclosable
connected transaction as defined under the GEM Listing Rules.

Details of the retirement benefits plan of the Group as at 31 May
2017 are set out in the note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pursuant to the memorandum and articles of association (“Articles
of Association”) of the Company, the applicable laws and
regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them may incur or sustain in the execution of their duties in
their offices. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of
the Group.

Save for the Share Option Scheme are set out above, the Company
has not entered into any equity-linked arrangement during the Year.

The Company recognized its responsibility to protect the
environment from its business activities. The Company is committed
to the sustainable development of the environment and our society.
The Group has endeavoured to comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and adopted effective
environmental practices to ensure our business meet the required
standards and ethics in respect of environmental protection.

During the Year, the Group had made charitable and other donation
for approximately RM31,417 (2016. RM19,656).

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2017

OoooOOoooO00oOooooooO0o20000
oO0oO0o0ooOoooooOooOoobOOobDOoDOg
ob0oo0oboooooooboOooOoooood
obooocooOooooOobOoOoocOooooad
oo00o0oooo0340ooooooooooo
ooooooooooonooooood

000020M705803100000000000
oooooooovza

o0oO0ooO0oD0oO0OoO0Oo0ooOOmooooo
OO0 odooob0OOo0oocOoOooooooooa
obooOooOooOoocOooocOooOoOooOobDoona
oo0oooooO0oDOobOooOoOoooooog
oooooooO0ooOooOoO0oOoOooOoOooOo0ogd
oobooooOoooOooOoobooooobooond
oooooooO0ooOooboOooOoOoooooog
oooooo

obooO0ooOooOoocOooocOooOooOonDooona
ooboDooooooo

ooooooOooOoooooooooooo
oooooocOooOooOoocOooOooOooOooOoa
oboooooocOooOoooooooooooo
ob0oo00oo0ooO0Ooo0ooooooooOooo
oooooooooon

O0o00oooooooooooooo3asa7o
0 20160 0 19,6560 O M



The Company has received from each of the Independent Non- 00000000000 00O00O0O0OOOO
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuanttoRule 0005090 000000000000000
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the independentnon- 000000000000 OO0OOO
executive Directors were independent during the Year.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2017 havebeen 0 020177050310 0 000000000
audited by Deloitte PLT (LLPO010145-LCA) who will retire and, being  Deloitte PLTI LLP0010145-LCA0D 0000000
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution forthere- DOO0D0O0D0O0O00O0O0O0O0ODOO 0O Deloitte PLT
appointment of Deloitte PLT (LLP0O010145-LCA) as auditor of the OLLP0010145-LCAO0 0D 00D OO0O0DOO0OO

Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM. 00o0000oO0oooooon
By Order of the Board ooooo

SK Target Group Limited oooooooag

Loh Swee Keong oo

Chairman Loh Swee Keong[ [

Hong Kong, 28 August 2017 00020170 80 280
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Since the Listing, the Board has recognised that transparency and
accountability is important to a listed company. Therefore, the Board
and the senior management of the Group is committed to achieve a
high standard of corporate governance, to formulate good corporate
governance practices for improving the accountability and
transparency in operations, and to strengthen the internal control
and risk management systems from time to time so as to protect the
rights of the shareholders and enhance shareholder value. The
Directors consider that good corporate governance provides a
framework that is crucial for effective management, successful
business growth and a healthy corporate culture which in return
benefits the Group’s stakeholders as a whole.

As the Shares of the Company were only listed on the Stock
Exchange on 19 July 2017, the Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG
Code") was not applicable to the Company during the financial year
ended 31 May 2017. The Directors will continue to review and
monitor its corporate governance practices in order to enhance its
corporate governance standard, to comply with the increasingly
tightened regulatory requirements from time to time, and to meet
the rising expectation of shareholders and other stakeholders of the
Group.

under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the role of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established.

Mr. Loh is the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer
of the Company. In view of Mr. Loh has been operating and
managing the operating subsidiaries of the Group since 1993, the
Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Loh taking up both roles for effective management and business
development. Therefore, the Directors consider that the deviation
from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is appropriate in such
circumstance.

Save as disclosed above, since the Listing Date and up to the date of

this report, in the opinion of the Directors, the Group has complied
with the code provision of the CG Code.
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As the Shares of the Company were only listed on the Stock
Exchange on 19 July 2017, the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director was not applicable to the Company during
the financial ended 31 May 2017.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company had also made specific enquiry of all the
Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards of dealings regarding securities transactions
by the Directors since the Listing Date (19 July 2017) to the date of
this report.

The Board currently comprises five Directors, including two Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and Mr. Tan Cheng Siong,
and three Independent Non-executive Directors are Mr. Yau Ka Hei,
Mr. Chu Kin Ming and Mr. Lee, Alexander Partick.

Mr. Loh Swee Keong is the chairman (the “Chairman”) of the Board.

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board is accountable to the
Shareholders and in discharging its corporate accountability. The
Directors, individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and the Shareholders and fulfill his
fiduciary duties by applying the required level of skills, care and
diligence to a standard in accordance with the statutory
requirements. The Board has the full support from the Executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company to discharge
its responsibilities.

The biographical details of the Directors and other senior
management are set out in the section headed with “Directors and
Senior Management Profiles” of this report.
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The Board is responsible for formulating the Group’s policies and
business plans, and monitoring internal controls and performances.
The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board which assumes the responsibility for promoting the success of
the Company by supervising its affairs. The Board focuses on
formulating the Group's overall strategies, approving the annual
development plan and budget; monitoring financial and operating
performance; reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control
system and supervising the management’s performance. Regarding
the Group’s corporate governance, the Board is responsible for
performing following duties:

(@ determined and reviewed the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group and make
recommendations;

(b)y reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management; and

(c)  reviewed and monitored the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The Group has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors (the “Model Code") on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings concerning securities
transactions by the Directors as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Directors are reminded of their obligations under
the Model Code on a regular basis. Following specific enquiries by
the Group, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code from the Listing
Date and up to 31 March 2017.

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Loh is the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company. In view of Mr.
Loh has been operating and managing the operating subsidiaries of
the Group since 1993, the Board believes that it is in the best interest
of the Group to have Mr. Loh taking up both roles for effective
management and business development. Therefore, the Directors
consider that the deviation from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is
appropriate in such circumstance.
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The Board meets regularly and, in addition to regular meetings, it
meets as and when warranted by particular circumstances. The
Company was listed on 19 July 2017. One board meeting has been
held from the date of the Listing to the date of this annual report.

The Group has not established a corporate governance committee
and thus the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in CG Code D.3.1 such as reviewing and
determining the policies and practices on corporate governance of
the Group, developing the Group’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and senior management, the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary. To
enable all the Directors to participate in the meetings, the Company
ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at the
Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner. Notice of regular Board meetings is
given to all Directors and they can include matters for discussion in
the agenda as they think fit. Draft minutes of Board meeting shall be
circulated to all Directors for comments prior to confirmation of the
minutes. The signed minutes are kept by the Company Secretary.
Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
They are also entitled to have full access to Board documents and
related materials so that they are able to make an informed decision.
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Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Directors shall have power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
first general meeting of members after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting; and any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Loh Swee Keong (Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer), Mr. Tan Cheng Siong and three Independent Non-executive
Directors namely Mr. Yau Ka Hei, Mr. Chu Kin Ming and Mr. Lee,
Alexander Patrick shall retire at the AGM and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The biographical details of above mentioned Directors proposed to
be re-elected at the forthcoming annual general meeting are set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profiles”
on pages 17 to 24 of this annual report.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles. Each Independent Non-executive Directors is
required to inform the Group as soon as practicable if there is any
change that may affect his/her independence. The Company has
received from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independency pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers these Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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To ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant, the Directors are encouraged to participate in
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a director of a listed company. Prior to the Listing, all
Directors had attended an in-housing training course provided by the
Hong Kong Legal Advisor of the Company in relation to the directors’
obligations and responsibilities, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the GEM Listing Rules. The relevant training material has been
distributed to all the Directors. The training covered topics including
the Code, listed company regulations and disclosure obligations in
Hong Kong, disclosable transactions and connected transactions etc.

The Board has established three board committees, namely the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “"Nomination Committee”). The terms of reference of the
Board's committee are posted on the Company’s website and the
website of the Stock Exchange and are available to shareholders
upon request.

The Group established the Audit Committee on 27 June 2017 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of
the GEM Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three members namely,
Mr. Yau Ka Hei, Mr. Chu Kin Ming and Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick. The
chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Chu Kin Ming.
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The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for the followings:

@)

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company's relations with the external auditor, and be primarily
responsible for making recommendations to the board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

to review with the Group’s management, external auditors and
internal auditor, where an internal audit function exists in the
Company, the adequacy of the Group's policies and system
regarding internal controls (including financial, operational and
compliance controls), risk management system and any
statement by the directors of the Company to be included in
the annual accounts prior to endorsement by the Board;

to review and monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and the annual, quarterly and interim financial
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them prior to approval by the Board,
with particular focus on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustment resulting from the audit/review;

(iv) the going concern assumption and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with the accounting and auditing standards,
and

(viy compliance with the listing requirements on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and legal requirements in relation to financial
reporting;
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(d

Oversee the issuer’s financial reporting system, the risk
management and the internal control systems;

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk committee,
or by the board itself, to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems;

to review arrangements employees of the Group can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-
up action;,

to review the draft representation letter prior to approval
by the Board;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective system. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the issuer’s accounting and financial
reporting function; and

to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated
by the board or on its own initiative and management’s
response to these findings.

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report, one
meeting has been being held for the Audit Committee. The audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 27 June
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.34
to 5.36 of the GEM Listing Rules and paragraph B.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee
currently consists of three members, namely Mr. Yau Ka Hei, Mr. Tan
Cheng Siong and Mr. Chu Kin Ming. The chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Mr. Yau Ka Hei.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for the
followings:

(@  toconsult the chairman of the Board and/or the chief executive
of the Company (where applicable) about their remuneration
proposals for other Executive Directors. The Committee should
have access to independent professional advice if necessary;

(b) review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(c) either (i) determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and
senior management of the Company; or (ii) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual Executive Directors and senior management of
the Company. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

(d)  make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company;

(e) consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries; and

(fy  review and approve compensation payable to the Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive.
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During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report, one
meeting has been held for the Remuneration Committee.

The emolument payable to Directors depends on their respective
contractual terms under the service contracts and the appointment
letters, and as recommended by the Remuneration Committee.
Details of the Directors’ emolument are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest
paid employees required to be disclosed under Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules have been set out in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Our Company established the Nomination Committee on 27 June
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
A.5 of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee currently consists of three members, namely
Mr. Loh Swee Keong, Mr. Yau Ka Hei and Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick.
The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Loh Swee Keong.

The main roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include
the followings:

(@  review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy;

(b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals hominated for directorships;

(c) assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company;

(d)  make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors of the Company and succession
planning for directors of the Company, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company; and
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(e) have a policy concerning diversity of Board members, review
the policy and the progress on achieving the objectives set for
implementing the policy and should disclose the policy or a
summary of the policy in the corporate governance report
annually.

The Board recognises the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of measurable aspects including but not
limited to educational background, professional qualifications, age,
ethnicity, knowledge and length of services. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regards for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. No restrictions, like age, gender, and ethnic
origin, will be set for the selection of Board members. The Company
will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of the business of
the Group. The Nomination Committee will ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the needs of the business of the Group.

The Company was listed on 19 July 2017. During the period from the

Listing Date to the date of this report, one meeting has been held for
the Nomination Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Ooogon

From the Listing Date to the date of this report, the attendance 0000000000000 O0O0O0OOOOO

record of each Director is set out in the table below: oooooo
Name of Directors Number of attendance/number of meetings from the
Listing Date to the date of this report
oooo O0000000000000000000000
Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
O0oo0on0 Oo0o0o0oO0o0 OoboooO0oO0 oobbooooo oooa
Executive Directors
oooo
Mr. Loh Swee Keong 1M N/A N/A 11 N/A
Loh Swee KeongO O ooo ooo ooo
Mr. Tan Cheng Siong 1/1 N/A /1 N/A N/A
Tan Cheng Siong0 O ooo ooo ooo

Independent Non-executive Directors

ooooooo

Mr. Yau Ka Hei Al Al Al Al N/A
ooooo ooo
Mr. Chu Kin Ming 1M 1M 1M N/A N/A
ooooo ooo ooo
Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick 11 1/1 N/A /1 N/A
ooooo ooo ooo

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDITING ooogn

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in preparing the Group’s 000000000000000000O0O0OO
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give 0000000000000000O0OO0OO0
a true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash 000000000000 O00OOOOOOO
flows and in accordance with the relevant accounting standardsand O0000000000000D00O00O0O0OO
principles and the disclosure requirements under applicable laws O0O0OO00O

and regulations in Hong Kong.

The responsibility of the external auditor is to form an independent 0000000000000 D0OO0OOOOO
opinion, based on their audit, on those consolidated financial 00000000000 O00O0O0O0OO0OO0OOO
statements prepared by the Board and to report their opiniontothe 0O 0 0 0 0O 0O 00O O O O O O Deloitte PLT
shareholders of the Company. The statements by external auditor, OLLP0010145-LCAOD 000000000000
Deloitte PLT (LLP0O010145-LCA), about their reporting responsibility 0000000000000 0OS5406000
on the financial statements of the Group are set out inthe 00000000

independent auditor’s report on pages 54 to 60 of this annual report.
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The Board is responsible for maintaining effective internal control
and risk management systems and for monitoring their effectiveness
to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the assets of the Group.
The internal control system of the Group aims to facilitate efficient
operation which in turn reduces the risks to which the Group is
exposed. The internal control and risk management systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the
achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The Group recognises that effective risk management is essential for
the long-term development on the Group’s business. The
management is responsible for establishing, implementing and
reviewing the sound and effective internal control system
underpinning the risk management framework. The Audit Committee
will periodically review the Group’s compliance status with the Hong
Kong laws and will perform its functions by (i) reviewing the internal
control and legal compliance; (ii) discussing the internal control
systems with the management of the Group to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system and (iii) considering the major investigation findings
on internal control matters as delegated by the Board or its own
initiative and the management’s response to these findings. While
taking into full account of the new requirements effective from the
Listing Date under the GEM Listing Rules brought by Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited relating to risk management and
internal control, the management has formulated the risk
management and control framework. All employees are committed
to implement the risk management framework into the daily
operation.

In relation to the Listing, to assess and identify weakness in the
Group'’s internal procedures, systems and controls, the Group has
engaged an independent internal control consultant (“Internal
Control Consultant”) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of
the internal control procedures, systems and controls. Based upon
the recommendations from the Internal Control Consultant, the
Group has taken remedial actions. Further, in order to continuously
improve the Group's corporate governance in the future the Group
will adopt the measures recommended by the Internal Control
Consultant.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Ooogon

Based on the result of the reviews as mentioned above, it is
considered that proper internal control and risk management
systems are in place and implemented effectively.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 May 2017, the remuneration paid or payable
to Deliotte PLT in respect of the statutory audit services and non-
audit services for the Group are as follows:

Nature of Services

oood

Audit services
Non-audit services

oood
oooono

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chau Wing Kei was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on 9 December 2016. All Directors have access to the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Ms. Chau taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the year
ended 31 May 2017. The biographical details of Ms. Chau are set out
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profile” on pages 17 to 24 of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interest and
rights, separate resolutions can be proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual Directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting. All
resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted by
poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and the poll voting results will
be posted on the website of The Stock Exchange and the Company’s
website after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.

oOooooooOoooooooooobDoonag
oooooooooooooooo

gooon

002017060310 000000000000
0000000000000 DeliottePLTO OO
ooo

Fee paid/
payables
ooooo
ooo
HK$'000
ooo

780
3,720
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The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The following procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting are subject to the Articles (as
amended from time to time), and the applicable legislation and
regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules (as amended from time
to time):

(@ EGM shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition
(the "Requisition”), not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings (the “Eligible Shareholders”). Such requisition shall
be made in writing to the Board or the Secretary for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two Months after the deposit of such requisition;

(b)y  The Eligible Shareholders must deposit the Requisition to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at
“Units 2201-3, Tai Tung Building, 8 Fleming Road, Wanchai” or
to Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the
Company, Tricor Investor Services Limited, Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong for the attention of
the Board and/or the Company Secretary;

(c) If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information are
posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any
enquiries.
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There are no provisions in the Articles of the Company or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene a general
meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

Shareholders may raise guestions, request for publicly available
information and provide comments and suggestions to the Directors
and management of the Company. Such questions, requests,
comments and suggestions can be addressed to the Company by
post to Units 2201-3 Tai Tung Building, 8 Fleming Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong or via telephone at (852) 2861 1999.

Should there are any enquiries and concerns from shareholders,
they may direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Hong Kong share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Investors Limited, by post to Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Hong Kong or via telephone at (852) 2980 1333.
Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together with
their detailed contact information for the prompt response from the
Company if it deems appropriate.

The Company has established a shareholders communication policy
between itself and its shareholders, and investors which aims to set
out the principles of the Company in relation to the shareholders’
communications, with the objective of ensuring timely, transparent
and accurate communications between the shareholders of the
Company and the Company. These include answering questions
through the annual general meeting, the publication of annual,
interim and quarterly reports, notices, announcements and circulars,
the Company’s website at www.targetprecast.com and meetings
with investors and shareholders. News update of the Group’s
business development and operation are also available on the
Company's website.

The Company adopted an amended and restated memorandum and
articles of association of the Company (the "Constitutional
Documents”) on 27 June 2017 and effective upon the Listing. A
copy of the Company’s updated Constitutional Documents is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SK
TARGET GROUP LIMITED (the “Company”) and its subsidiary
companies (collectively referred to as the “Group”), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 May 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 May
2017, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information as set out on pages 68 to 127.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position as at
31 May 2017, and of their financial performance and their cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Deloitte PLT (LLP0O010145-LCA)
Chartered Accountants (AF0O080)
Level 16, Menara LGB

1 Jalan Wan Kadir

Taman Tun Dr. Ismail

60000 Kuala Lumpur

Malaysia

Tel: +60 3 7610 8888
Fax: +60 3 7726 8986
myaaa@deloitte.com
www.deloitte.com/my
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With effect from 3 January 2017, Deloitte, a conventional partnership firm with the Registration No. AF0080, was converted to Deloitte PLT (LLPO010145-LCA) (AFO080).

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee (“DTTL"), its network of member firms, and their related entities. DTTL and each of its member firms are
legally separate and independent entities. DTTL (also referred to as “Deloitte Global”) does not provide services to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/my/about to learn more about our global network of member

firms
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
goouogd

INDEPENDENCE AND OTHER ETHICAL O00000o0O0o0ooo
RESPONSIBILITIES

We are independent of the Group in accordance with International 000000000000 O0O0OOOOOOO
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for OOO0OO0O0OO0ODIESBAD 0D 00000
Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilledour 0O O0000O0OOO0OO0O0IESBAOODODOOO
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. ooooooo

KEY AUDIT MATTER ogooooa

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement, COODO0O0O0OO0OO0O0O0O0O0O0O0O0OO0OOOO
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial 00000000000 OD0O0OO0O0OO0OOOOO
statements for the current year. The matter was addressed inthe O0O0O00O00 OO00O0OO0OO0OOOOOOO
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the 0000000000 O0D0OO0O0OO0OOOOO
Group as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, andwe do O0O0OO0O0O

not provide a separate opinion on the matter.

Impairment of trade receivables How our audit addressed the key audit matters

oooooooo ooooooooooooooo

We identified the impairment of trade receivables asa  Our procedures in relation to the recoverability of trade
key audit matter due to the use of judgement and  receivables included:

estimates by the management on the evaluationofthe 00000000000 O0O0O0OO0OOOOOO
recoverability of trade receivables.
go0oooboobO0obo0oooobooboooooboo

Verified the balances of trade receivables by

ooo0oooo0o0ooooOooOoOooOooooo requesting and receiving confirmations on a sample
gooao basis;
. go0oboobo0oboooobooboooooo
ooo

. Tested aging of trade receivable balances at year end
on a sample basis;
. goboobooobuooboobo

o Obtained a list of long outstanding receivables and
identified any debtors with financial difficulty through
discussion with management;

U gooooobooooooobooooooooa
oo0ooOoo0ooooooooooooboa
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To determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the counterparty and default or significant
delay in payments. The management also considers
the creditworthiness, the past collection history of
each customer, ageing analysis and subsequent
settlement of individual balances.
000000oOo0o0oooOoo0o booooooao
gooo0ooooooooooooobooboobo
doododbooboobooboobuoooooooao
goob0o0oooooooooooooooooao
gooooobooood

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the
amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated
based on historical l0ss experience for assets with
similar credit risk characteristics.
gooooodoboob0obuooooooboobo
do0oboobo0obooooboobooboooooa
oo

As set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
RM13.1 million (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
RMO.2 million) as at 31 May 2017.
J000doooooooooooooooag 2017
055031000 ouo MU0 mouooooooon2
oooomm

. Assessed the recoverability of these outstanding
receivables through our discussion with management
and with reference to credit profile of the customers;
and

. doooooboooooooboooboooooa
gooooooboooobooo

. Assessed the recoverability of the balances by
comparing the outstanding amounts as at year end
against subsequent settlements.

o ddoooooooboooboooooooooa
gooooobooo

Based on the audit procedures performed, we found that
the Group’s judgement and assumptions used in the
impairment assessment are supported by the available
evidence.

goob0oob0ob0oo0ob0o0o bDoobobooo
do0o00o00oobooooooo
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The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements of the Group and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements of the Group
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements of the Group that give a true and
fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The Directors of the Company are also
responsible for such internal control as the Directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group, the
Directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements of the Group as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors of the Company.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
of the Group represents the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors of the Company regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors of the Company with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Directors of the Company,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

DELOITTE PLT (LLP0O010145-LCA)
Chartered Accountants (AFO080)

KHONG SIEW CHIN

Partner — 03049/03/2019 J
Chartered Accountant
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Joooooooouon

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2017
002017050310000

2017
20170
RM'000

ooo

Revenue 0o 6 33,595 33,281

Cost of sales oooo (23,172) (23,352)
Gross profit ood 10,423
Other income 0oooo 948
Administrative expenses oooo (3,342)
Selling and distribution expenses ooooooo (1,331)
Listing expenses oooog (6,048)
Finance costs oooo 9 (57)
Fair value change of financial assetsat 00000000000

fair value through profit or loss oooooooo 13
Profit before taxation ooooo 10
Taxation oag 11

(Loss)/Profit and total comprehensive O OO0MmMOO0O0OO
(loss)/income for the year ooomoooo

(Loss)/Earnings per share — Basic 0oomoo —oao
(RM cents) ogoooo 12

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated 0000000000000 DOOOODOO
Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Joooogn

AT 31 MAY 2017
020170 50 310

Note
oo

Non-Current Assets ooooo
Property, plant and equipment oooooooo 14
Investment property oooog 15
Total Non-Current Assets ooooooo
Current Assets oooo
Inventories oo 16
Financial assets at fair value through OO00oo0ooooooog

profit or loss oo 17
Receivables, deposits and prepayment 00000000000 18
Amount owing from a Director oooooo 19
Amount owing from ultimate holding Oooooooooo

company 19
Amount owing from a shareholder oooooo 19
Tax recoverable ooooao
Short-term bank deposits pledged Oo0o0oO0ooocooooog

with banks 20
Cash on hand and at bank ooooooo
Total Current Assets oooooo
Current Liabilities oooo
Payables and accrued charges ooooooooo 21
Amount owing to a Director oooooo 19
Finance leases oooo 22
Bank borrowings oooao 23
Tax payable oooo
Dividend payable oooo
Net Current Assets ooooao
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2017 2016
20170 20160
RM’'000 RM'000

ooo ooo

2,261
411

2,672

1,049
835

11,599
177

1,349
3,181

18,190

6,110
93
599

286
2,000

9,088

9,102



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Oooooon

AT 31 MAY 2017
020170 50 310

2017
20170
RM'000

ooo

Total Assets Less Current Liabilities OO0 00000 19,041

Non-Current Liabilities ooogo

Finance leases oooo 22

Bank borrowings oooao 23

Deferred tax liabilities oooooo 24

Net Assets ooo

Capital and Reserves ooooo

Share capital oo 26 -
Reserves 00 18,483

18,483

The consolidated financial statements on pages 61 to 67 were Qooel06e/0 000000000000
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 20170802800 0000000000000

August 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: ooooo

Loh Swee Keong Tan Cheng Siong
Director Director

oo oo

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated pooOoDODODOODOOOOOOOOOO
Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Joooogn

Share Other Accumulated
capital reserve profits Total
oo gooo gooo 00

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

ood ooo ooo ooo
(Note 26) (Note 25)
ooo2en 0ooo2aso

At 31 May 2015 020150 50 310 - 570 8,118 8,688
Profit and total ooooo

comprehensive income oooooo

for the year - - 4,895 4,895
Dividend declared (Note 13)  0OO0OO0OO00ODOO 130 = = (2,000) (2,000)
At 31 May 2016 020160 50 310 - 570 11,013 11,583
Loss and total comprehensive OO0 OO

loss for the year oooooao = - (1,109) (1,109)
Acquisition of the equity oooooooooao

interest in subsidiary oooooooo

companies by oooo

an intermediate holding
company of the Company

pursuant to the

reorganisation - (570) - (570)
Capital injectionandissuance 0000000

of shares - 8,579 - 8,579
At 31 May 2017 020170 50 310 S 8,579 9,904 18,483

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated OD0DO0O0O0O0O0O0OD0OO0O0O0ODOOOOOO
Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Oooooon

2017
20170
RM'000

ooo

OPERATING ACTIVITIES oooo

Profit before taxation ooooao
Adjustments for: oooooooooo
Depreciation of property, plant and oooooooooo
equipment
Depreciation of investment property oooooog
Finance costs oooo
Allowance for doubtful debts oooao
Bad debts written off/(recovered) ooomooooa
Fair value change of financial assetsatfair 0000000000 00O00O0
value through profit or loss ooooao
Gain on disposal of property, plant and oooooooooOoooo
equipment
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange ooooooog
Interest income oooo

Operating Cash Flows Before Movementsin 0 0000000000000

Working Capital

Decrease/(Increase) in inventories oooomooo

Increase in receivables, deposits and o0Do0o0ooooooooao
prepayment

Increase in payables and accrued charges oo00oooooooo

Net Cash (Used In)/Generated From Oooomooooon
Operations
Income tax paid ooooao

Net Cash (Used In)/From Operating Activities 000D O00M 000000
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Joooogn

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceed from disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Proceed from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Proceed from disposal of available-for-sale
investment

Repayment from a Director

Advance to a shareholder

Advance to ultimate holding company

Advance to a Director

Decrease in amounts owing from related

parties

2017
20170
RM’'000

ooo

oooo

oooo

oooooooooo

goooooooooooooon
oooo

gooooooooooooon

gobooboobooobo

gooo
goboooboo
gbooooooboooon
gobooobod
gobooobooo

Net Cash From/(Used In) Investing Activities

oooooomooooooo

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid

Finance costs paid

Repayment of bank borrowings

New bank borrowings raised

Repayment of finance leases

Decrease/(Increase) in short term bank
deposits pledged

Investment from pre-IPO investor

oooo

oooo

oooood

oooood

oooood

oooood
ooooooooooomoon

oooooooooooon

Net Cash From/(Used In) Financing Activities

oooooomooooooo
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Oooooon

2017
20170
RM’'000

ooo

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH oooooooooood

EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT oooooooooo
BEGINNING OF YEAR

Effects of exchange rate changes on the O0o000oO0o0oooooooao

balance of cash held in foreign currency

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATEND OO0 O0OOOOOOOO
OF YEAR REPRESENTED BY
Cash on hand and at bank ooooogooo

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated DCOoDOODOOODOOOOOOOOOO
Financial Statements.
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The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited since 19 July 2017. The Company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as a private limited liability
company on 28 October 2016. The addresses of the Company's
registered office and principal place of business are P.O. Box
1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands and 18, Jalan LP 2A/2, Taman Lestari Perdana,
43300 Seri Kembangan, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia,
respectively.

Merchant World Investments Limited (“Merchant World”), a
limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
("BVI"), is the immediate and ultimate holding company of the
Company. Mr. Loh Swee Keong, is the ultimate controlling
party of the Company who wholly owned Merchant World.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and trading
of precast concrete junction boxes, trading of accessories and
pipes and provision of mobile crane rental and ancillary
services in Malaysia. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiary companies are set out in Note 32
to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Malaysian Ringgit (“RM”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company. All values are rounded to nearest thousands
(RM’000), unless otherwise stated.
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In preparation for the proposed initial listing of the shares of
the Company on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group underwent a reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) as described below.

The Reorganisation involved the setting up of the Company,
Gallant Empire Ltd (“Gallant Empire”), SK Target Holdings Sdn
Bhd (“SK Target Holdings") and Loyal Earn Ltd (“Loyal
Earn”), and interspersing the Company, Gallant Empire, SK
Target Holdings and Loyal Earn between Target Precast
Industries Sdn Bhd (“Target Precast”), Target Sales &
Marketing Sdn Bhd (“Target S&M"), and Target Crane &
Logistic Sdn Bhd (“Target C&L") and Mr. Loh Swee Keong, the
director and sole beneficial owner of these group of entities.
The Company, Gallant Empire, SK Target Holdings, Loyal Earn,
Target Precast, Target S&M, and Target C&L were under
common control by Mr. Loh Swee Keong throughout the year
ended 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017 or since their respective
dates of incorporation, where there is a shorter period. The
Company is the holding company after the Reorganisation and
forming part of the Group. The Group comprising the Company
and its subsidiary companies resulted from the Reorganisation
is regarded as a continuing entity. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared using
the principles of merger accounting. The consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, consolidated
statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements
of cash flows of the Group have been prepared as if the group
structure upon completion of the Reorganisation had been in
existence throughout the year or since their date of
incorporation, where there is a shorter period. The
consolidated statements of financial position of the Group as at
31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017 have been prepared to present
the assets and liabilities of the companies now comprising the
Group as if the group structure upon completion of the
Reorganisation had been in existence at those dates taking into
account the respective date of incorporation, where applicable.

oooooooooooooOooooo
ooooooDoOOooooOo000oooO0n
oooomooOonooooo

0000000000 Gallant Empire Ltd
[ Gallant Empire[11J SK Target Holdings
Sdn BhdT) SK Target Holdings(T1 O Loyal
Earn LtdO Loyal EarnI O 0000 OO0
Gallant Empired SK Target Holdings O Loyal
EarnO O Target Precast Industries Sdn Bhd
[0 Target Precast(1] Target Sales &
Marketing Sdn BhdTl Target S&M[1I O
Target Crane & Logistic Sdn Bhd1I Target
C&LMO Loh Swee KeongO O O 0O O O
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Gallant Empired SK Target HoldingsO Loyal
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS")

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to IFRS 10,  Investment Entities: Applying
IFRS 12 and IAS 28 the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operation

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

For the purpose of preparing and presenting the consolidated
financial statements for the year, the Group has consistently
applied all new and revised International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards, amendments
and interpretations (“new and revised IFRSs") issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") which are
effective for annual accounting periods beginning on 1 June
2016 throughout the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

gootdoggnd

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSS") (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
IFRSs that have been issued by not yet effective:

Amendments to I1AS 7
Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IFRSS

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 9

IFRS 15

IFRS 16
IFRS 17
IFRIC 22
IFRIC 23

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IAS 40

Disclosure Initiative’

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses'

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2014-2016 Cycle*

Sales or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments?

Leases®

Insurance Contracts®

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration*

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments®

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts?

Transfers of Investment Property?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
or 1 January 2018, as appropriate
: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

C Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the new and revised IFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with accounting policies which conform with IFRSs
issued by the IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements have included applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of the
reporting period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17
“Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS
2 “Inventories” or value in use in 1AS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;
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. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level |, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly, and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies.
Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary company begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary company and ceases when
the Group loses control over the subsidiary company.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary company
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary company.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of a subsidiary company to bring its accounting
policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statement items of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling

party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
combined using the existing carrying amounts from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in
respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common control
combination, to the extent of the continuation of the controlling
party’s interest.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under common control, where this is a
shorter period, regardless the date of the common control
combination.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for the sales
related tax (e.g. goods and services tax).

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

(i) Sales of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the

significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2017

oo0oo0oooO0oOoooOOooDOoOoooo
oooooocoOOooooOoooooonoo
oo0ooooOoooooocoboooooo
ooooooo

gooooooooooooooooo
oooooooobobOooOoOooO0oobOo
gooo0oooooOoooooOoooooao
oooooooOooooOooooooo
joddooooooooooboooo
obooooboobOooo

gooooooooooooooooo
oo0oooO0ooooOooooOOooooa
cobOooomooooooooboooo
goooooooboomboooooobooo
gooog

oooooooOoooobOOoooboooo
ggoooobObOOOooooooono
gooo

ooo0o0ooooOOoooooOoooooo
dodoooooooooooooo
ooooboooOoooobooo

() 0DOoOo
oobooOoooOooOoOoooooa
oooooooooocoooooo
od

. cooooO0oooOooooa
oooooooooo



(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Sales of goods (Continued)

J the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services
Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Rental income

Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms. The aggregate costs of incentives
provided to lessees are recognised as a reduction of
rental income over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis using
the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised and included in profit
or loss under finance costs in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in
which they are incurred.
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(i) Short-term employee benefits
Wages, salaries, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are
recognised as expense in the period in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of the
Group. Short-term non-accumulating compensated
absences such as sick leave are recognised when the
absences occur.

(ii) Retirement benefits costs
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions. The
Group has no further payment obligations once these
contributions have been paid.

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as
reported in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other statement of comprehensive income because of income
or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets, if any, is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of each reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress as described below) are
stated in the consolidated statements of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress for manufacturing purposes is carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Such properties are reclassified to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than construction in progress less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2017

ooooooooooobooooono
oboo0ooooooO0oocOoOoooogo
oo0o@ooooooo@moooono
o0ooo0omooooooooooono
ooooo0oomoOoOooooooa
oooo

oOoooooOoooOooooooooao
ooOo00oo0ooOoOO0O00ooDO0O00o
oo00oooo0O0ooooooooonoa
oo0ooooOOooooOOoboooooo
ooOooo0oooOoooO0O0oobD0oo
ooooo0oO0ooooooooooooao
obooooooooooooooon

gooooOoooooomooocoooo
ooODoooo0OooDO0oOooOo0OO0ooD0Oo
oooooooooooooooooao
coooooOoOooooOOoOooooOOoo
oooooooooooo

ooooooo0ooocoOoooOooooao
ooooooooooooooooooo
ooooOoooboooooOooooono
gooO0o0oooooOoooooOogooao
oooooooooocooo

obooooooboooooOoooooo
oo0o0oooOoooOO0ooobDOooo0o
ooo000o0oooooO0o0oOoooo0oao
ooo0ooooOoooooooocoOoo
ooOooooOoooOOooooOOooobO0o
ooooooooooo



Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment 10ss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or l0ss.
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The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"). The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including receivables, amount owing from a
Director, amount owing from ultimate holding company,
amount owing from a shareholder and cash on hand and at
bank) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy
on impairment of financial assets below).

Financial assets at FVTPL
A financial asset may be designated as FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as FVTPL.
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Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising from remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note
28(C).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or
loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the loans and receivables, the estimated future cash flows of
the loans and receivables have been affected.
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
For loans and receivables and financial assets at FVTPL,
objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

. default or delinguency in interest or principal payments,
or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
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Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group entities are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

The Group's other financial liabilities including payables,
amount owing to a director, dividend payable and bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets,
in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the
Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting
policy below). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.
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When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in Note 4, the Directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
each reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next 12 months.

The Group assesses at end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a receivable is impaired.
To determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of
the counterparty and default or significant delay in payments.
The management also considers the creditworthiness, the past
collection history of each customer, ageing analysis and
subsequent settlement of individual balances.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount
and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk
characteristics. The carrying amounts at the reporting date for
receivables are disclosed in Note 18.

Information reported to Mr. Loh Swee Keong, the Director of
the Group, being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"),
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance is based on the following reportable and
operating segments identified under IFRS 8 Operating
Segments:

(@ Manufacturing and trading — manufacturing and trading
of precast concrete junction boxes; and

(b)  Other building materials and services — trading of
accessories and pipes and provision of mobile crane

rental and ancillary services.

No operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ooooooon

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 6. 0DDODODOOODooO
(Continued)
Segment revenues and results 0o00oooo
For the year ended 31 May 2017 002017050310000

Other building

Manufacturing materials and
and trading services Total

ogooo

ogooono oooono oo
RM’'000 RM'000 RM’'000
ooo ooo ooo

Revenue

External sales oooo 33,595

Inter-segment sales ooooo 1,240
Segment revenue oooo 34,835
Elimination oo (1,240)
Group revenue oooo 33,595
Segment result oooao 10,263 10,423
Administrative expenses goooo (3,342)
Selling and distribution ooooooo

expenses (1,331)
Listing expenses oooo (6,048)
Finance costs oooo (57)
Other income oooo 948

Fair value change of financial OOOOO0OOOOOOO
assets at fair value through ooooocooo
profit or loss

Profit before taxation ooooao
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Joooogon

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 6. 00000D0Oooo

(Continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)
For the year ended 31 May 2016

Uo0obooddooo
0020160 50310000

Other building
materials and
services
oooo
ogoooao
RM'000
aoo

Manufacturing
and trading

oooono
RM'000
ooo

Revenue oo

External sales gooao 29,089 4,192 33,281

Inter-segment sales ooooo - 846 846
Segment revenue oooo 29,089 5,038 34,127
Elimination oo (846)
Group revenue oooo 33,281
Segment result goog 9,589 340 9,929
Administrative expenses gooo (2,198)
Selling and distribution ooooooo

expenses (1,256)
Finance costs oooo (75)
Other income oooo 154
Fair value change of financial OOOOOOOOOOO

assets at fair value through oooooooo

profit or loss 12
Profit before taxation ooooao 6,566
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ooooooon

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies as described in Note
4. Segment results represents the profit from each segment
without allocation of administrative expenses, listing expenses,
selling and distribution expenses, finance costs, other income,
fair value change of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and taxation. This is the measure reported to CODM for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates with
discount given for certain bulk purchase.

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable and operating segment:

As at 31 May 2017

Manufacturing
and trading

oooog
RM'000
oog

Non-current assets 3,203

Current assets oooo 14,013
Non-current liabilities 0oooo (411)
Current liabilities oooo (6,031)

6.

ooooob0Oooo

Uo0obooddooo
oo0o0o0oo0OO0Oo0O0O000400000
goobOooooooOoooooboooobooao
oooooooooooooobooo
oooocoOoooooooOooooooao
goooooOooocoboOooooOooooao
gooooOooobooooOoOoooono
oooooooOooooooooao

oo0ooooOOoooooooOooooo
oobDoOooOoOoDOo

goooood
oooooooooooooOooooDno

oooooood

020170 50 310

Other
building
materials
and services
gooo
ooooo
RM'000
ooo

Consolidated
assets
(liabilities)
oooo

oooo
RM‘000
ooo

Segment
assets
(liabilities)
oooo
0ooo
RM'000
0oo

Unallocated

00O
RM'000
ooo

3,619 -
20,862 4,151
(411) (147)
(2,939)

(6,652)

HHREBAERADT / 2017F 3K



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Joooogon

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

As at 31 May 2016

Manufacturing
and trading

ooooog
RM'000
oog

6. 0DO0O0O0OOO0OOoooO

Uo0obooddooo
020160 50 310

Other building Segment Consolidated
materials and assets assets
services (liabilities)  Unallocated (liabilities)
gooo oooo gooo
ooooo oooo ooo gooo
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

ooo ooo ooo ooo
Non-current assets goooo 2,242 430 2,672 S 2,672
Current assets oooo 11,494 6,696 18,190 S 18,190
Non-current liabilities 0oooo (85) - (85) (106) (191)
Current liabilities oooao (7,515) (1,287) (8,802) (286) (9,088)

All assets and liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than certain cash on hand and at bank, deferred listing
expenses, other payables, current and deferred tax liabilities.

Other segment information
For the year ended 31 May 2017

Ma

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit or

oooooooood
gbooooogd

loss or segment assets: ooo
Additions to non-current ooooooao
assets
Factory rental oooog
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ooooooon

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 6. ODUOOUOOOODOD
(Continued)
Other segment information (continued) O0000Oooo
For the year ended 31 May 2016 002016050 310000

Other building
Manufacturing materials and

and trading services
oooo
ooooo ooooo
RM'000 RM'000
ooo ooo
Amounts included in the oooooooooao
measure of segment profitor OOO0OO0OOO0OO
loss or segment assets: ooo
Additions to non-current ooooooo
assets 413 = 413
Factory rental oooo 376 - 376
Geographical information oooo
No geographical segment information is presented as the 000000000 O000O0O0OO0O0On
Group’s revenue is all derived from Malaysia based on the 0000000000 00O0O0O0O00O0
location of trading and services delivered and the Group's non- Oo00O0000OO00O00OoOoOoooon
current assets are located in Malaysia by physical location of 0000000000000 D0000
assets.
Information about major customers oooooo
No customer contributes over 10% of total sales of the Group 0000000000000 00000
for each of the reporting years. 00 10%0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Joooogon

7. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 7. 0000
Mr. Loh Swee Keong and Mr. Tan Cheng Siong were appointed Loh Swee KeongO O O Tan Cheng SiongO
as Directors of the Company on 28 October 2016 and 9 000020160100 280 0 20160 120
December 2016 respectively. Details of the emoluments paid 000000000000 D00000O0
or payable to the Directors of the Company (including 00000 O00O00O0O0O0oooon
emoluments for their services as employees or Directors at the 000000000000D00O00mO
Group prior to becoming the Directors of the Company) are as ooao
follows:
For the year ended 31 May 2017 002017050310000

Mr. Loh Swee Mr. Tan Cheng
Keong Siong Total
Loh Swee Tan Cheng

Keong[ O Siong O O oo
RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000
ooo ooo ooo

Directors oo

Other emoluments: ooooo
Salaries oo
Bonus oo
Contributions to Employees ooooOomooo
Provident Fund ("EPF") o000 ooog
(Note)
Total OO
For the year ended 31 May 2016 0020160 50310000

Mr. Loh Swee
Keong
Loh Swee

Keongd O
RM'000
oooQ

Directors oo

Other emoluments: ooooao

Salaries oo 192
Contributions to EPF (Note) oooooooooog 36

228
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ooooooon

7. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 May 2017 (Continuea)
Notes:

The Group is required by Malaysian law to make monthly contributions
to the EPF, a statutory defined contribution plan for all its eligible
employees based on certain prescribed rates of the employees’
applicable remuneration. Contributions are charged to profit or loss in
the period in which they relate. The contributions to EPF are disclosed
separately and the contributions to EPF are included in salaries,
bonuses, allowances and other staff benefits. Once the contributions
have been paid, the Group has no further payment obligations.

No Independent Non-executive Directors were appointed by the
Company during the year. Mr. Yau Ka Hei, Mr. Chu Kin Ming and Mr.
Lee, Alexander Patrick were appointed as Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company on 27 June 2017. No emoluments were paid
to any of the Independent Non-executive Directors during both years.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of the office.

No directors’ emoluments were waived during both years.

8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees of the Group included 1 and 2
Directors for the year ended 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017
respectively, details of whose remuneration are set out in Note
7. Details of the remuneration for the remaining 4 and 3 highest
paid employees who are neither a Director nor chief executive
of the Company are as follows:

Uddlooo

0020170 50310000000
ooo

oo0ooo0ooo0ooo0ooo0ooo0ooon
oooooOooooOoOoOooooOoooooo
0000O0oO0O00OO0OO0OO0cOoOO00OO0OO0O0O0000
oo0o0oooooO0oOoOoOoOOoOoOoOoOoooo
g00o0o0o0oooOoOoO0o0oOoO0OOOoO0OO0O0oooo
goo0oooooooooooooooooo
gooooooooooooooo

O000000OO0oO000OO0O00O0O0O0OO0ooon
O0o0ooO0oO0O000OO0O000020170 60 27
goooooooOoobooOoOooooOoooo
gbooo0oooooo0ooooooooooon

g00o0ooOooooOoOoOoO0oOOOOOOOOooOo
O00000O0oO0OO0o000OO0OO0OO0O0O0O00Oo0O
ooooooooo

0oo0oO00o0oO00o0oo0O00o0oa

gooooogo
ooooooooooboooooooan
2016050310 02017050310000
01020000000000000070
004030000000 0000C0O0
o0o0oo0ooomooooooooon

2017 2016
20170 20160
RM'000

RM’'000
ooQo ooo

Salaries and allowances ooooo 446
Bonuses oo 33
Contributions to EPF ooooooo 78

557
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Joooogon

8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) 8. U00O0O0O0O0OOnoo
The number of the highest paid employees whose 000000000 mMOOOoOoooooa
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: oooao

Nil to RM500,000 (equivalent to HK$ nil O00ooos000000@O000d

to HK$1,000,000) Ogooo1,000000000 5
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to 00000000 000O00O0O0o0o0an
the five highest paid employees of the Company as an 00000000000 00O00000
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as 000000000000000000
compensation for loss of the office. ooo
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. O0OOO

Interest on finance leases oooooo 14
Interest on trust receipt loan oooooooo 24
Interest on bank overdraft oopooono 14
Interest on term loan oooooo 23

75
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ooooooon

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Auditors’ remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as an
expense

Staff costs, excluding Directors'
remuneration
— Salaries, wages and other benefits
— Contribution to EPF

Minimum lease payments on rented land

Minimum lease payments on rented crane

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of investment property

Bad debts written off/(recovered)

Allowance for doubtful debts

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Rental income from investment property

Interest income

Unrealised gain on foreign exchange

Realised gain on foreign exchange

10. OOO0ODO
00000000MO0O0000000
oo

2017
20170
RM’000

2016
20160
RM'000

ooo ooo

ooooo 425 59

oooooooooo

15,878 23,352

ooooboboobood

—Ooooooooooon
—Oooooooo

oooooooooooo
ooooooooooood
ooooooooono

oooooo
coomoooao
oooo
oooooooooooon

oooooboo
oooo
goooooao
ooooooo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Joooogon

11. TAXATION 1. 0O

2017
20170

RM’'000
ooo

Malaysia corporate income tax: oooooooooo

Current year ood

Underprovision in prior years oooooooo
Deferred tax (Note 24): 000000024

Current year ood

Overprovision in prior years gooooooo
Malaysia corporate income tax is calculated at the statutory tax 00000000000 D00DO0ODO0D
rate on the estimated assessable profits for each of the 00000000000000
assessable year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ooooooon

11. TAXATION (Continued)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

taxation as follows:

1. 0ooo

2017
20170

RM'000
ooo

oooooooooooooooon

2016
20160
RM'000

ooo

Profit before taxation ooooao 6,566
Statutory tax rate oooo 24%
Taxation at applicable statutory tax rate Oo0oO0ooooooooog 1,576
Tax saving of 5% (Note) 005% 000 (53)
Tax effect of expenses not deductiblefor DOOOOOOOOOO

tax purpose 148
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax oooooooooOoO0

purpose =
Deferred tax assets not recognised ooooooooo S
Effect of different tax rate of entities ooooooOoooOooOooo

operating in other jurisdictions oooooag =
Underprovision of income tax payablein - 0000000000

prior year oooo =
Overprovision of deferred tax inprioryear OO OO0O0O0OOO0OO0OO -
Taxation for the year oooo 1,671

Note: Under the Income Tax Act 1967 of Malaysia, small and medium
enterprises in Malaysia with paid-up capital amounting to
RM2,500,000 or less are subject to income tax at the rate of
19% and 18% for the year ended 31 May 2016 and 31 May
2017 respectively, on chargeable income amounting to
RM500,000 or less. For chargeable income in excess of
RM500,000, the corporate income tax rate is 24% for the year
ended 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017 respectively.

ooooooooOo19700000000
20160 50310020170503100000
0000000 0000250000000
0000000000 0000019%0
18%00005000000000000
OooOooOooooosooooo0nonn
0000000206050 310 02017
os03100000000000000
0 24%0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Joooogon

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the following data:

(Loss)/Earnings for the purpose of basic
(loss)/earnings per share ((loss)/profit
for the year attributable to the owners oo
of the Company

12. DO O0MmMmAao
ooo@moomoooooooooo
ood

2017
20170

2016
20160
RM'000

ooo

RM'000
ooo

oooooooboooooo
ooomoomooo0

4,895

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of calculating
basic (loss)/earnings per share

Number of
shares
oooo

Number of

shares
oooo

goboobomoon
oooopoooooogd

317,020,000

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic (loss)/earnings per share has been
determined on the assumption that the Reorganisation and the
capitalisation issue as described in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements has been effective on 1 June 2015.

No diluted (loss)/earnings per share information has been
presented for the year ended 31 May 2017 and 2016 as there
were no potential ordinary shares outstanding during both
years.

13. DIVIDEND
Interim dividend of RM2,000,000 was declared by the subsidiary
companies during the financial year ended 31 May 2016.

Other than disclosed above, no dividend was paid or declared

by the Company since its incorporation or by other group
entities for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ooooooon

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. DOO0OO0O0OO
Leasehold
landand  Plant and Motor Office  Computer Construction
building machinery  vehicles Renovation Factory equipment  software in progress Total
oooo oo
0oo 0oo oo oo 0 00 0000 0000 0000 0o
RMOO0  RMO00  RMOO0  RMOO RM000  RWM000  RMOO0  RMO00  RMO00
ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo aoo ooo
Cost 00
At1June 2015 0201506010 365 1,502 1124 162 28 151 641 19 = 422
Additions oo - - 126 61 - 1 N - 194 m
At 31 May 2016 02016050310 365 1,502 1250 23 258 162 662 19 194 4,635
Additions oo - 75 32 175 62 70 Kl - - 1483
Disposal 0o - - 13) - - S S S S ®3)
Reclasification oooo - 194 - - - - - - (194) -
At31May 2017 02017050310 365 2471 1,199 398 320 232 701 19 - 5,705
Accumulated depreciation D000
At 1une 2015 0201506010 % 897 45 9 124 73 04 17 - 2009
Depreciation for the year 0ooo 7 3 19 1" 2% 15 53 1 - 3%
At 31 May 2016 02016050310 103 990 564 104 150 8 357 18 - 2374
Depreciation for the year 0ooo 7 157 124 K] 9 2 52 1 - 42
Disposal 0o = = 31 = = = = = - (313
At31May 2017 02017050310 10 1,147 375 138 179 110 409 19 - 2,481
Carrying value ooo
At31May 2016 02016050310 22 512 8 19 108 74 305 1 194 2261
At 31 May 2017 02017050310 255 1,32 824 260 1M 122 292 - - 3218
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Joooogon

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. 0000000 Oooo
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for 00000000000 mMOO0ooooa
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line 000000000000
basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and building 2% ooooooo 2%
Plant and machinery 10% ooooo 10%
Motor vehicles 10% oag 10%
Renovation 10% ood 10%
Mould 10% oo 10%
Factory 10% oag 10%
Office equipment 10% oooo 10%
Computer software 20% oooo 20%
The following are the carrying values of the assets held under 0000000000000 O00000
finance leases included in property, plant and equipment: 00000000 Oooa0o
2017
20170
RM’'000
aoo
Motor vehicles oo 377
Plant and machinery ooooao -
377
The Group has pledged leasehold land and building with a 02016050310 0201705031000
carrying value of approximately RM262,000 and RM255,000 as 00000000D00D0262000000
at 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017 respectively, to secure 25500000 0000000000000
general banking facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in 0000000000000 00023
Note 23. ooom
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ooooooon

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15. O0O0OO
RM'000
ooo
Cost oo
At 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017 020160 50 3100 20170 50 310 450
Accumulated depreciation oooo
At 1 June 2015 020150 6010 29
Charge for the year oooo 10
At 31 May 2016 020160 50 310 39
Charge for the year oooog 10
At 31 May 2017 020177050 310 49
Carrying value ooo
At 31 May 2017 020177050 310 401
At 31 May 2016 020160 50 310 411
The investment property, comprising of a freehold land and 000 ooooooooooooon
building in Malaysia, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over 0Oo0o0O0ooosooooooooa
50 years.
Rental income earned by the Group from the investment 0020160503100201770503100
property which is leased out under operating leases, amounted 000000000000 ooooo
to approximately RM25,000 and RM22,000 for the year ended 0 OoooO0oooooo25000000
31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017 respectively. Direct operating 22,0000 00O 0O DO 20160 50 310 O 2017
expenses incurred in respect of the investment property 0503100000000000000
amounted to RM681 and RM887 for the year ended 31 May O00000D00oOé81onoosgs7onn

2016 and 31 May 2017 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Joooogon

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

Fair values of the Group's investment property at 31 May 2016
and 31 May 2017 were RM690,000 and RM690,000 respectively.
The fair values of the investment property have been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out on those dates by
Messrs. Laurelcap Sdn. Bhd. (the “Valuers”), Suite E-7-2, East
Wing, Subang Square, Jalan SS 15/4G, Subang Jaya, 47630,
Subang Jaya, Selangor, 47500, Malaysia, using the comparison
method by referring to recent transactions involving similar
properties in the vicinity. The Valuers are independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group, and are
members of the Board of Valuers, Appraisals & Estate Agency,
Malaysia. The valuation is a Level 3 fair value estimation. In
estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

16. INVENTORIES

At cost: oooo
Raw materials and consumables gooooooao
Finished goods 0ooo

15. 0000Oooo

020160 50 310 0201705031000
0000000000000 69,00000
06200000 000000000000
Messrs. Laurelcap Sdn. BhdO O O O I O
0 O Suite E-7-2, East Wing, Subang Square,
Jalan SS 15/4G, Subang Jaya, 47630, Subang
Jaya, Selangor, 47500, MalaysiaOOd O O O
0000000000000 O00O00O
000000000 000000000
00000000000 000O0OO0
000000000 O0O00O0O0OoOoon
000000000000O000000
00000000000 000O0O00O
dooooooooon

16. OO

2017 2016
20170 20160
RM’'000 RM'000

ooo ooo

600
449

1,049

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

oooo

Unit trust funds in Malaysia, atfairvalue O0OO0OO0O0O0O00O00O0OO

17. OO0 OO00OOO0OO0OOOOOO

2017 2016
20170 20160
RM'000 RM'000

ooo ooo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ooooooon

18. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENT

18. J0OO0OOO0OOOOOO

2017
20170
RM'000

ooo

13,301
(176)

13,125

Trade receivables oooooo
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts oooooo
Other receivables gooooo
Deposits oo
Prepayments ooao
Deferred listing expenses oooooog

25
278
92
2,353

15,873

The amounts due from trade debtors are unsecured, do not
carry any interest and the credit term granted by the Group
ranges from 30 to 120 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of
allowance for doubtful debts) presented based on the invoice
date.

1-30 days 10 300
31-60 days 310 600
61-90 days 610 900
91-120 days 910 1200
More than 120 days 120000

goooooooooobooooooaa
0O0000000030012080

ooo0OoooOoO0ooooOoooOooooo
ooboooooDooooon

1,988
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Joooogon

18. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENT 18. OO0 O0ODOOOODOOooo

(Continued)

As of 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017, trade receivables of
RM6,584,000 and RM3,409,000 respectively, were past due but
not impaired. These relate to a number of diversified customers
for whom there was no recent history of default and have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the Directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
allowance for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as these balances were either subsequently settled
or there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered recoverable.

The following is an ageing of trade receivables which are past
due but not impaired based on invoice date.

31-60 days 310 600
61-90 days 610 900
91-120 days 910 1200
More than 120 days 120000

002016050310 020170503100
00D 6,584,0000 OO 3,409,0000 000
oooO0ooooO0oOooooOooOoOoooa
oooO0ooocoOoOooooOoOooooo
oooooooooooooooooono
gooooooooooooooood
goo0ooocooooooOoooooa
oo0o0ooooOOooooOoOoooooa
oooOoooooooooon

oo0oooO0OOoocoOooooOoOooooao
ooooooooon

2017
20170

RM’'000
ooo

The movement in allowance for doubtful debts:

At beginning of year ooo
Impairment losses recognised ooooooo

ooooooooon

2017 2016
20170 20160
RM’'000 RM'000

ooo ooo

176

At end of year ooo

176

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts is one individually
impaired trade receivable with balance of approximately
RM176,000 as at 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017 which has
been placed in severe financial difficulties. The Group does not
hold any collateral over this balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ooooooon

19. AMOUNTS OWING FROM/(TO) A DIRECTOR,

20.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY AND A
SHAREHOLDER

Particulars of the amount owing from a director discloseable
pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinances are as
follows:

Mr. Loh Swee Keong

The amounts owing from/(to) a director, Mr. Loh Swee Keong,
is non-trade nature, unguaranteed, unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. As at 31 May 2017, including in the
amount owing to a director of RM570,000 represents the
unpaid balance of the acquisition of the subsidiary companies
and has fully settled on 17 July 2017.

The amount owing from ultimate holding company is non-trade
nature, unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

The amount owing from a shareholder is non-trade nature,
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

SHORT TERM BANK DEPOSITS PLEDGED WITH
BANKS

Short term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less carry interest at prevailing market rate of 3.30%
and 3.15% per annum as at 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017
respectively. The short term bank deposits are pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group as
disclosed in Note 22.

19. 00D OoOoooooooooDoo

Balance at
31 May 2017
0 20170

50 310
ooo
RM’'000
ooo

Loh Swee Keong O -

20.

gooon

ooooooO0ooooOoooOooooa
oooooo

Maximum

amount

Balance at outstanding
1June 2016  during the year
0 20160
6010
ooo
RM’'000
ooo

gooo

gooon
RM'000

ooo

177 177

0000000 Loh Swee KeongO O O
gooboooboboobooooooo
0g0oDoooooo201705031000
gopogooogs7o00000ooooOon
00000oo00oooooooo20M707
017000000

goooooooooooooooog
oo0oo0OoO0ooOoooOooooooa

goobooooooooooooood
ooooooooo

gogoooobbboood

020160 50310 0201705031000
gooooooooooooooooa
00000000000 3.30%0 3.15%0
goooooooooooooo oOo
0000000000 mooO02200
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Joooogon

21. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 21. JO000O0OOOO

2017
20170

RM’'000
ooo

Trade payables oooooo

Other payables oooooo

Accrued listing fees oooooo

Accrued charges oooo

Tenant’s deposit oooo

Advance from customers oooao

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented 000000000 000000000
based on the invoice dates. ooo

2017
20170
RM’'000

ooo

1-30 days 10300 1,451

31-60 days 310 600
61-90 days 610 900
91-120 days 910 1200
Over 120 days 120000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ooooooon

21. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES (continued)
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 to 75
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
timeframe.

Tenant deposits represent the refundable deposits to tenants
upon termination or cancellation of operating lease
arrangements. The tenant deposits are refundable to tenants
within 60 days upon the termination of the tenancy agreement.
The tenants’ deposits to be settled after twelve months from
the end of the reporting periods based on the lease terms
amounted to RM4,000 and RM4,000 as at 31 May 2016 and 31
May 2017 respectively.

22. FINANCE LEASES

21. 0O00OD0ODOOO0OO0O0oo
O00o0o00oooo3eo07000000
ooo0oooO0oooooooDO0oooboono
ooooOoooooao

oo0ooooO0oooO0ooooOooonoa
oo00ooooOooooooooooo
gooOooeéeDOoUoooooooon
0000000012000 000000
0020160 50310020170 50 3100
Oo4,000000 4000000

22. J0O0OO

2017
20170

RM’'000
ooo

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

oooooooooo

Current liabilities oooo 93
Non-current liabilities oooono 69
162

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles,
plant and machinery and office equipment. The Directors
determined the leases to be finance leases as the ownership
of the relevant assets will be transferred to the Group upon the
payment of the last instalment of the individual agreement. The
average lease termis 4 and 5 years as at 31 May 2016 and 31
May 2017 respectively. Interest rates underlying all obligations
under finance leases are fixed at respective contract dates
ranging from 6.25% to 7.10% and 4.70% to 7.10% per annum
for the year ended 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017 respectively.

goooooooooobooooooo
oooooooO0oOoOoocoOOooooao
ooooooobOOoooooOoooooo
goooooooooooo bO0O0o
02016050310 0201705031000
OO00O000040050000201605
0310020170503100000000
oo0oooo0ooooOoooOooooo
00000000000 6.25%0 7.10%0
4.70%0 7.10%0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Joooogon

22. FINANCE LEASES (continued) 22. 000 Oooo

2017
20170
RM’'000

ooo

Total outstanding: oooooo

Not later than one year goooo
Later than one year and not later than oooooooooao
five years
Less: Finance charges oooooo
Principal outstanding ooooo
Less: Amount due for settlementwithin - 00O 012200000000
12 months (Shown under current 0oooooooooo
liabilities)
Amount due for settlement after 0120000000000
12 months
Finance leases are denominated in RM. Certain finance leases 0000000000000000000
are guaranteed by Mr. Loh Swee Keong, a Director and Ms. Loh O Loh Swee KeongO O O Loh Swee Keong
Lily, the sibling of Mr. Loh Swee Keong. The Directors O00O0O0OLwhlyDOOOoOOooOOooOoooOO
represented that the guarantee will be released in the ooooooooooooo

foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ooooooon

23. BANK BORROWINGS 23. 0000

2017

20170

RM’'000

goo

Current — secured o0 —ooo

Term loan oooog 115
Trust receipt loan oooooao 285
Bank overdraft oooog 199

Carrying amount of bank borrowings goooooooooao

repayable within one year ooo 599
Non-current — secured term loan ooo—oooooo
repayable Withina period of morethan OOOO0OO0OOO00O00OO
one year but not more than two years oooooao 16
615
The term loan bore interest at Base Lending Rate (“BLR") plus 020160503100 000000000
1.5% per annum as at 31 May 2016. 00000000000 0001.5%000
The trust receipt loan bore interest at Islamic Base Rate (“IBR") 020160503100 000000000
plus 1.5% per annum as at 31 May 2016. 0000000000000 OoOon
1.5%0 00
The bank overdraft bore interest at IBR plus 1.5% per annum as 020160503100 000000000
at 31 May 2016. 0oooooo15%000
The bank borrowings facilities are secured by: 000000000 D0O0OOoOo
(i)  leasehold land and building with a carrying amount of () 02016050310 02017050310
RM262,000 and RM255,000 as at 31 May 2016 and 31 0000002620000 00 255000
May 2017 respectively;, OooooOoooooo
(i fixed deposit of RM1,349,000 and RM1,059,000 as at 31 @iy 02016050310 02017050 310
May 2016 and 31 May 2017 respectively; and 000 1,349,0000 O O 1,059,0000 O
ooooooo
(i) personal guarantee by Mr. Loh Swee Keong, a Director of (i) 0O O0O0O00Loh Swee KeongD O O
the Company. The Directors of the Company represented 000000000000 oooa
that the guarantee will be released in the foreseeable 0o000oO0oOoooao
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Joooogon

24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

24, JO0O0OOO

2017

20170

RM’'000

ooo
At beginning of year ooo 106

Charged to profit or loss (Note 11): Ooooooo 1104

Property, plant and equipment oooooooao =
At end of year ooo 106

The deferred tax liabilities mainly represent the taxable

temporary differences arising from property, plant and

equipment.
25. OTHER RESERVE
The other reserve at 31 May 2016 and 31 May 2017
represented the aggregate amount of the fully paid registered
or paid-in capital of Target Precast, Target S&M, Target C&L,
Gallant Empire, SK Target Holdings and Loyal Earn. As at 31
May 2017, the amount represents the capital contribution from
a pre-IPO investor. Pursuant to a subscription agreement, the
pre-IPO investor agreed to subscribe for, and Gallant Empire
agreed to allot and issue 388 ordinary shares of Gallant Empire,
which represented 27.95% equity interest in Gallant Empire, to
the pre-IPO investor for a total subscription price of
HK$15,000,000 (approximately equivalent to RM8,579,000).

As part of the Reorganisation, Mr. Loh transferred his equity
interest in Target Precast, Target S&M and Target C&L to SK
Target Holdings for a total consideration of RM570,000. After
the transfer, Target Precast, Target S&M and Target C&L
became wholly-owned subsidiary companies of SK Target
Holdings.
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25.

goooooooooobooooooa
ooooooooooOoooo

oggooo

020160 50 31002017050 31000
0O O O O Target Precastd Target S&MO
Target C&LO Gallant Empired SK Target
HoldingsO Loyal EarnO0 000000 OO
ooooo2017050310000000
gb0oOobOoOOoooOoobooooooo
goOOoODDOOoOOoDbOOoOOooOoOOooooOooan
O Gallant Empire0 0000000000
00000003880 Gallant Empired O
[0 000 Gallant Empired 27.95% 0 0O [T
0000015000000 00000
8,579,0000 O 4

O0O0O0O0OoOooOLwhoOOo O Target
Precastd Target S&MDO Target C&LO O O O
0 0O SK Target HoldingsO O O O O 570,000
000 0000 Target Precastd Target S&M
O Target C&L0O O SK Target HoldingsO O O
ooooo



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ooooooon

26. SHARE CAPITAL
The share capital as at 31 May 2017 represented the issued
share capital of the Company. Pursuant to the Reorganisation,
the Company became the holding company of the companies
now comprising the Group on 11 November 2016. The share
capital as at 31 May 2017 represents the share capital of the
Company with details as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

26. OO

020170503100000000000
O000000o0ooooooo?20160 1
O1MoooooooooocOooOo0oo0o
0000207058031 0000mM0O00
ooooooDmooooo

goooooioooooo

Share

capital
oad

HK$
oo

Number of
shares

oooo

Authorised: ooao
At date of incorporation/31 May 2017 oooooooo

(note a) 20170 50 3100 0 O ad 38,000,000 380,000
Issued and fully paid: ooooooag
At date of incorporation (note a) 000ooooOuogag 1 -
Issue of shares on Reorganisation (noteb) 000000 0700 bO 9,999 100
At 31 May 2017 020170 50 310 10,000 100

Notes:

(@  On 28 October 2016, the Company was incorporated and
registered as an exempted company in the Cayman Islands with
an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 comprising
38,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and paid up share
capital of HK$0.01 comprising 1 ordinary share of HK$0.01 each.

(b)  On 11 November 2016, Merchant World and Greater Elite
transferred 1,000 and 388 ordinary shares of Gallant Empire to
the Company respectively, and in consideration thereof, the
Company allotted and issued as fully paid an additional 7,204
ordinary shares to Merchant World and 2,795 ordinary shares to
Greater Elite. After the said transfers, Gallant Empire became a
wholly-owned subsidiary company of the Company.

All ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu with
the then existing ordinary shares in all respects.

ooo

020160100280 00000000
00o0oooooooooooooa
000 380,0000 03 O O 38,000,0000
gooooonoOoOooOOoOoCboOO
gooiom@moo10O00O0Oo0.010
ooooom

0 20160 110 110 O Merchant World
O Greater Elited O O 1,0000 O 3880
GallantEmpire0 0000000000
00000000 OoODOoDOoOoOoOoooo
O00O0o0DO0ooo72400000
Merchant WorldO 2,7950 O O O O
Greater Elite0 0O O O O O O O Gallant
Empre0 000000000000

oooooooooooooOooooao
ooooooDooooooon
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27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as going concerns while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of finance leases,
bank borrowings and equity balance. Equity balance consists
of equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
share capital and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on
an on-going annual basis. As part of this review, the
management of the Group considers the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the management of the Group, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends as well as the issue of new debt and repayment of
debt.

‘ 114 ‘ SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ooooottn

27. 00ODOOOO

oooooooooooooOooooo
ooooOooooO0oOoobDOOoboDO0On
ooo0O0ooooOoo0oooooooao
oooocooo

oooooocoOooooOooooooo
oo000ooooOoOO0ooooOOoooboD0oo
oob0OoO0O0OCoOoOoO0ooOoooooon

oo00oooO0OOooooOoOoooOooa
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ooooooon

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Categories of financial instruments (@) ODOoooo

(b)

Financial assets
Loans and receivables (including cash
on hand and at bank)

28. 00O0OO

2017 2016
20170 20160
RM'000 RM'000

ooo ooo

gooo
goboobmoboo
oooooo

Financial assets at FVTPL

ooooooooooooa

Financial liabilities oooo

Amortised cost oooo

Financial risk management objectives () DOODDODDODOOOOOO
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments and details of o00000oooooO0oooooao
these financial instruments are disclosed in the 0ooo0ooDO0O0ooooOoOoon
respective notes. The risks associated with these oooooo0oooOoooooooo
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate ooooooboo

these risks are set out below.
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Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to the Group’s bank balances as well as variable-
rate bank borrowings.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management closely monitors
its exposure to future cash flow interest rate risk as a
result of changes in market interest rates and will
consider hedging changes in market interest rates should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis is provided on bank balances and
bank borrowings as the management of the Company
considers that the interest rate fluctuation on bank
balances and bank borrowings are minimal and the
impact from the exposure to interest rate risk sensitivity
is considered insignificant.

Credit risk

The Group's exposure to credit risk is primarily due to the
collectability risk of the trade receivables. The length of
the credit period granted by the Group will depend on
the customers’ scale of operation, reputation and
credibility. The Group performs on-going credit evaluation
on the financial condition of trade debtors and tightly
monitors the overdue debts. The Group will take the
necessary follow up action in case of long outstanding
debts or when the above credit evaluation results draw
the attention of management. In addition, the
management reviews the recoverable amount of the
trade receivables individually and collectively at each
reporting date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts as set out in
Note 5. The credit policies have been followed by the
Group and are considered to be effective in limiting the
Group's exposure to credit risk.
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Credit risk (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which might cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties arises from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statements of financial
position.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
with its exposure spread over a large number of
customers.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are banks with good credit
ratings and the Group has limited exposure to any single
financial institution.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’'s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities which has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of the non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The maturity dates for the
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates.

uboooo
oooooooooooobooooo
oobDo0ooOo0ooO0oo0oooooo
ooooo0OoOoOooocOoooood
oooooooooooooooo
ooo

oooooOoOoooO0ooOoooOono
oooooooooooo

oooooocooocoboooono
ooooooDOOo0ooOO0oOoO0oDo
ooooOoooooooooooa
oobooooooo

gbooooo
oooooocooocoOoooooa
oobDo0ooOo0ooO0oo0oooooo
ooooooooooboooood
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ooooooog
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Joooogon

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows,
to the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve
at the end of the reporting period.

28. D O0O00Oooo

(b)

gooobooooboboo0ooo

ooobooooo
gooooooocoboooooo
oooOoo0ooooooobDoooo
ooooOoooooo

Weighted
average  On demand or Total
effective  less than 12 undiscounted  Total carrying
interest rate months  1to2years Over2years  cashflows amount
oooo oooo ooooo
oooo 120000 1020 2000 oooo oooo
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo
As at 31 May 2016 020160 50 310
Payables and accrued charges 000000000 S 6,110 - - 6,110 6,110
Finance leases oooo 6.25-7.10 104 18 ] 180 162
Bank borrowings 0000 33590 623 16 - 639 615
Divicend payable 0ooo 2,000 - - 2,000 2,000
8,837 34 5 8,929 8,887
As at 31 May 2017 02017050 310

Payables and accrued charges 000000000 =
Amount owing to a Director 0ooooo S
Finance leases oooa 4.70-7.10
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ooooooon

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities

0]

Fair value of the Group's financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is determined in
accordance with the quoted prices in the over-the-
counter market. This valuation falls under Level 2 of
the fair value hierarchy and is based on the monthly
reports provided by the fund manager, which
represent the fair value of the mutual fund.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
other financial assets and other financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.
Fair values of the other financial assets and other
financial liabilities have been determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the
most significant inputs being the discount rate that
reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

29. LEASE COMMITMENT
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year

goo

28. 0 000Oooo
00000000 o0oon
ogod

(c)

29. 00O0OO

0]

(if)

ooooooooooooao
oooooooobooooao
ooooooooboooooo
ooooooooooooao
oooooocooooooao
ooooooog

oooooooboooooo
ooooooooooooao
ooooooooooooao
ooooooooboooooo
ooooooooooooao
oooooooobooooao
ooooooooboooooo
ooooooooooooao
oo

oggooood
oooo0oooocoOoooobOoooooaa
ooooooOoooooooOooobooo

ooo

2017
20170

2016
20160
RM'000

ooo

RM’000
ooo

30

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for a piece of land. The lease is negotiated for a team of
3 years and is cancellable on giving a notice of 3 months. The
rental is fixed for 3 years.

oo0oooooooooooooonod
O000000000o030000003
000000000000300000

HHREBAERADT / 2017F 3K



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Joooogon

29. LEASE COMMITMENT (Continued) 29. 0DO00ooo
The Group as lessor oo0ooooooo
The property held by the Group has committed tenants and 0000000000000 D0O0O000
lease rentals are negotiated annually. ooooo
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted 0000000000000 D0O0OoOn
with a tenant for the following future minimum lease 00o0O00ooooooo
receivables:

2017 2016
20170 20160
RM’'000 RM'000

ooo ooo

Within one year ooo 22
In the second to fifth years inclusive Doo0mooooooo 2
24
30. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 30. O0O0OO
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following 0000000000000000000
capital commitments in respect of the acquisition of property, 0ooooooooon

plant and equipment:

2016
20160
RM'000
oo
Contracted but not provided for ooooooao
31. NON CASH TRANSACTION 31. DOODODO
Addition of property, plant and equipment of RM100,000 during 00020160503100000002017
the year ended 31 May 2016 and RM729,000 during the year 0503100000000000 100,000
ended 31 May 2017 was financed by new finance lease ooo72900000000000000O
agreements. oooooooooooo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ooooooon

32. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 32. DOOOOOOO
During the year, the Company has direct and indirect 0000000000 0oO0OoDoOoooon
shareholders/equity interests in the following subsidiary dooooooooo
companies:

Equity attributable to the Group

ooooooo
Issued and

Name of Place of fully paid-up  Asat31 Asat31
Company incorporation share capital May2016 May 2017 Principal activities

oooo 020160 020170
gooa oooooo oooo 50310 50310 0OO0O0O0
Target Precast Industries San. Bnhd.  Malaysia RM500,000 100% ' Manufacturing and trading of

0ooo 500,0000 O precast concrete junction
boxes

gbobooooooooon

Target Sales & Marketing San. Bhd.  Malaysia RM70,002 100% 1 Trading of precast concrete
0ood 70,0020 0 junction boxes and
accessories and pipes
goddoooOoOoobooo
gooao
Target Crane & Logistic Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia RM100 100% " Provision of mobile crane rental
gooo 10000 and ancillary services
goddooooooa
gooao
Gallant Empire Limited*' British Virgins Island US$1,000 - . Investment holding
gooooo 1,00000 gooa
SK Target Holdings? Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100 - 0 Investment holding
gooa 10000 gooad
Loyal Earn Limited® Hong Kong HK$1 - 0 Inactive
oa $100 gooa
i Directly held by the Company & oooooooo
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Notes:

None
secur

Gallant Empire Limited (“GEL") was incorporated in the BVI with
limited liability on 5 June 2016. As at the date of incorporation,
GEL was authorised to issue a maximum of 50,000 shares of
USD1 each. On 21 July 2016, 1,000 shares (representing the
entire issued share capital of GEL) were allotted and issued as
fully paid to Merchant World. As part of the Pre-IPO Investment
as described in Note 24 to the financial statements, GEL allotted
and issued as fully paid 388 shares to Greater Elite Limited
(“Greater Elite").

On 11 November 2016, as part of the Reorganisation, each of
Merchant World and Greater Elite transferred its respective
entire shareholding interests in GEL to the Company, in
consideration of Company allotting and issuing as fully paid an
additional 7,204 ordinary shares to Merchant World and 2,795
ordinary shares to Greater Elite. After the said transfers, GEL
became a wholly-owned subsidiary company of the Company.

SK Target Holdings Sdn. Bhd. (“SKTH") was incorporated in
Malaysia on 24 August 2016 with an authorised capital of
RM400,000 divided into 400,000 shares of RM1 each, and 99
shares were allotted and issued to Mr. Loh Swee Keong (“Mr.
Loh") and one (1) share was allotted and issued to Mr. Ng Thuan
Leong (“Mr. Ng"), both for cash at par value. Pursuant to a
declaration of trust executed by Mr. Ng on 14 December 2016,
Mr. Ng confirmed, inter alia, that the one (1) share held by him
was held on trust for Mr. Loh with effect from 24 August 2016
and he dealt with the said one (1) share in such manner as Mr.
Loh from time to time directed and voted at the shareholders’
meeting and board of directors’ meeting as Mr. Loh from time to
time directed. On 6 October 2016, GEL acquired 99 shares of
SKTH from Mr. Loh at the consideration of RM99 and acquired
one (1) share of SKTH from Mr. Ng at the consideration of RM1.
After the said transfers, SKTH became a wholly-owned
subsidiary company of GEL.

Loyal Earn Limited (“LEL") was incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability on 1 June 2016. On the date of incorporation, LEL
allotted and issued as fully paid one (1) share (representing the
entire issued share capital of LEL) to the initial subscriber, which
was then transferred to GEL at the consideration of HKD1 on 28
July 2016.

of the subsidiary companies had issued any debt
ities at the end of year.
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Gallant Empire Limitedd GELLTTI 20160 6
OsS5000000D0D0O0o0oOoOoooa
goooDo0oo0O0oDOOoOoobOOooogD
50,0000 D0 0 O0O1000000000
20160 70 21001,0000 O I O O O
GELOOODOUODOoDUO0muooooooo
00000 MerchantworldD OO QO 0OO
J00200000000000000
O00OGELODOO0O0OO0O0OO0OD0ODOD 388
0 O O O Greater Elite LimitedI Greater
Elite(1D

0201601MO0MO0O0O0O0O0O0O0OO0
Merchant World O Greater Elited O O O
OGELOODODOO0OO0O0O0O0O0OO0O0O00O0
odo0oDo0oOoOobOOoOoooooooa
7,2040 O O O O Merchant WorldO 2,795
OO0O0O00OGreaterElite0 000000
O00GELOOO0OO0O0O0O0O00O00Oa0

SK Target Holdings Sdn. BhdIl SKTH(TT]
2016080240 00000000000
000D 40000000000 4000000 O
Joo10ouoooooo9nououoo
0 O O O Loh Swee KeongO O LohO
DMmooMODODODOO0OO0OO0O0O0Ng
Thuan LeongO OO NgO O OO OO OO
J000O00O0ONgOOO 20160 120 14
J00000000ONgOODDMODUODO
000206080240 00000 (MO
JOoO0O0oO0oooOoOowhooooooo
O0hDOODOoDOooooooooo()
000000 whoooooooooao
0000000000 0O00d20160 10
O0600GELO 0 O990O00OLohO OO
OSKTHO 9D O OooOooo1000
NgOOODOSKIHOOMOOoOOoooa
O00SKTHOOGELOODODOOOOO

Loyal Earn LimitedD LELCTIO 20160 60 1
gooobooooboobobobooo
ooO0oCOLELOODCOOoODOOoOogoooo
OMOODMUOOOLkELODODODoDOOoOoOo
0000000000 20160 702800
00100000 GELO
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As at 31 May 2017, the Group has provided a performance
guarantee in respect of a project signed with Telekom Malaysia
Berhad, a customer, amounting to RM534,000 for securing a
project. This guarantee will be discharged upon the completion
of the project.

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties:

() Mr. Loh Swee Keong, a Director of the Company
and Ms. Loh Lily, the sibling of Mr. Loh Swee Keong,
have provided financial guarantees to certain
subsidiary companies of the Group as disclosed in
Notes 22 and 23.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
consolidated statements of financial position and in Note
19.

The remuneration paid or payable to the key
management personnel, being the Directors of the
Company, during the year is included in Note 7. The
remuneration of key management personnel is
determined with reference to the performance of the
individuals and market trends.

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the
shareholders of the Company on 27 June 2017, the
authorised share capital was increased from HKD380,000
comprising 38,000,000 shares at par value of HKD0.01
each to HKD100,000,000 comprising 10,000,000,000
shares of par value of HKDO0.01 each, by way of creation
of an additional 9,962,000,000 shares at par value of
HKDO0.01 each.

02017050310 000000O0DOOOO
0 Telekom Malaysia BerhadO O O O O O
go0o0o0oDOooos3so000o0o0o0o
goo0obOOoOoobOOoOoOoobobobooo

(@) O0OO0DODOOoOOOOOOOOOO
od

(i) 0 0O 0220230 O ddLoh
Swee KeongO (D OO0 O OOO
O Loh LilyO 0 Loh Swee Keong
oo ogoooood
gooooooooo

(y ODOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
oo19000

(0 ODO0O0OO0OOOO0OOO0OOOO0OmOO
ooooooooooooz70oOO
oooooooooooooooo
oooooo

0000000020170 60270
ooooooooobDoOOoODoOo
9,962,000,0000 0000001000
ooooOoOoooassooooomon
38,000,0000 00000010000
0O 00 01000000000 0O O O
10,000,000,0000 O O O 000100
oo0Om
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On the same date, pursuant to the written resolutions
passed by the shareholders of the Company, conditional
upon the crediting of the Company’s share premium
account as a result of the issue of the public offer shares
and the placing shares for the proposed initial listing of
shares of the Company on the GEM board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the directors of the
Company were authorised to capitalise an amount of
HK$4,399,000 standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company by applying such sum towards
the paying up in full at par a total of 439,990,000 shares
for allotment and issue to the shareholders as of 27 June
2017.

On 19 July 2017, the Company has successfully listed on
the GEM board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and made an offering of 162,000,000 new shares
by way of placement and 18,000,000 new shares by
public offering priced at HKDO0.28 per share. On the same
date, the Company has completed the capitalisation
issue to the shareholders after the successful listing on
the GEM board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

This has resulted in the issued and paid-up share capital
increased from HKD100 comprising 10,000 shares at par
value of HKD0.01 each to HKD6,200,000 comprising
620,000,000 shares at par value of HKD0.01 each.

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the
shareholders of the Company on 27 June 2017, the
Company has conditionally adopted a share option
scheme. No option was granted as at the date of this
report.

On 1 August 2017, Telekom Malaysia Berhad has signed
and returned the formal agreement between the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary company, namely
Target Precast Industries Sdn Bhd, in respect of the
supply and delivery of concrete junction boxes and
junction box cover for a term of three years from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019.
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0201707019000 00000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ooooooon

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of Financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

Non-Current Assets
Investment in a subsidiary company

Current Asset
Receivables, deposits and prepayment
Amount owing from subsidiary companies (Note a)

36. DOOOOOODO

oooooooooooooOooooDno
od

2017
20170
RM’'000

ooo

ooooo
oooooooo

oooo
oooooooodooo
oooooooooOad

Cash on hand and at bank oooooon
Total Current Assets oooooog
Current Liabilities oooo

Payable and accrued charges
Amount owing to subsidiary companies (Note a)

ooooooooo
ooooooo0uonoad

Total Current Liabilities oooooao
Net Current Liabilities ooooo
Net Liabilities ooo
Capital and Reserves ooooo
Share capital o0

Accumulated loss (Note b)

000Joobo

Total Equity oooo

Notes oo

a The amount owing from/(to) subsidiary companies are a 0000 Oo00oo0oooooon
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. 00oooooooo

b The loss for the period from 28 October 2016 (date of b 0201601002800 00000000

201705031000000000000
000000000 6,048,000000

incorporation) to 31 May 2017 mainly comprise the listing fee of
RM6,048,000 incurred during the period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
googogth

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. 000OODOOO0OO0OO0OO

COMPANY (continued)
The financial position of the Company was approved and 000000000020170802800
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 August 000000000 000000000
2017 and are signed on its behalf by: ooooo

Loh Swee Keong Tan Cheng Siong

Director Director

oo oo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ooooooon

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36 J0D0OOOOO0OOpoO

COMPANY (Continued)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY goooo
Note: ooo

Accumulated
loss
oooo

RM’000
ooo

At 28 October 2016 (Date of incorporation) 020160100280 0000000 =
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the period goooooooooo (5,915)

At 31 May 2017 020170 50 310 (5,915)
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THREE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Joogon

Year ended 31 May
0050310000
RESULTS 2017 2016

oo 20170 20160
RM’000 RM'000
ooo oono

Revenue oad 33,595 33,281 23,165
Gross profit oo 10,423 9,929 7,478
Profit before taxation goooo 606 6,566 5,107
(Loss)/Profit for the year OCooomoo (1,109) 4,895 3,846

As at 31 May

050310
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 2017 2016
Doooo 20170 20160
RM’000 RM’000
ooo 0ooo

Total assets

Total liabilities oooo 9,279 7,547
Net assets ooo 11,583 8,688
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ooooo

Total equity oooo 18,483 11,583 8,688
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